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Narrafive Report
Introduction

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 315t March 2017 is as sel out in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and it's financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
ihe United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2017 {the Code) and the Department for Communities Accounts
Direction, Circular LG 10/2017. It is the purpose of this foreword 1o explain, in an easily undersiandable way the
financial facis in relation to the Council.

This Statement ol Accounts explains Mid and East Anfrim Borough Council's finances during the financial year 2016/17
ond its finonciol position at the end of that year. It follows approved accounting standards and is necessarily
technical in pars. :

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interesis and to prepare a full set of group financial
stalements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Mid and East Antrim
Borough Council does nol have material interests in such bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group
financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 26 shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council,
analysed inlo 'usable reserves’ [i.e. those thatl can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation} and
other reserves. The “Surplus or {deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the
Council’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalemeni. These
are different from the stotutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Locol Tax purposes.
The 'Net increase /Decreqse before transfers 1o staiutory ond other reserves' line shows the siatulory General Fund
Balonce before any discretionary transfers to or from statutory and other reserves undertaken by the Council,

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set oul on page 27, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting praciices, rather than the omount to be funded from taxation, Councils raise
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounling cost. The
taxation posifion is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.,



The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 28, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assels and
liobilities. The net assets of the Council {assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the
Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use {for example the Copital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure
arrepay debt). The second categery of reserves are those that the authority is not able 1o use 1o provide services. This
category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve),
where amounts would only become available to provide services if the asseis are sold; and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Staiement line *Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
baosis under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Sialement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporling
period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by clossifying cash
fiows as operatling, investing and financing aclivities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is
o key indicalor of the exient jo which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income
or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outfiows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery.
Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capilal
(i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Financial Report

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Council increased its General Fund reserve by £154k 1o £3.971k. The Council's
budgel of £48.9m was supplemented by £3k for prior year finalisation payment of distiict rates. The fotal net
expenditure repored in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is £6.2m and includes allocations of
£297k to the Repairs and Renewals Fund, £840k 1o the Capital Fund and £850k to fund capital expenditure.

Expenditure on capital projects during the yeor amounted to £4.9m, the most significant spend was on Ecos Science
Park £1.4m, vehicles and equipment £0.3m, Hamyville Community Centre £0.9m. Poriglenone Community Centre
£0.3m, Gobhbins £0.5m, The Council also spent £2.4 million on the Ballymena ond Larne Public Realm Schemes.

The following siatements are designed to assist the reader of the accounts by focussing on material events and issues
which occurred during the 2016/17 year or have an impact on the financial statements for the year.

@) The Council has closely monitored service expenditure in its second year of full operation seeking to deliver
efficiencies wherever possible. Loan interest payable has been kept 10 a minimum, no new PWLB loans
were taken down during 2016/17. This has been achieved not withstanding the second year of working
through a 4 year £27m capital plon. £21m has already been progressed to commitment stage i.e. under
way, statutory requirement or approved at least in principle. Income from grants have been received from
various sources from small revenue schemes 1o major capital schemes. Council’s corporate plan objectives
are to grow the economy of the Borough while limiting ony increase on local taxpayers to a minimum. In
overall ferms the Council has managed its activity within budget returning o surplus of £154k.
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The Council continues its pension provision for the majority of its stoff through the Northern Ireland Local
Govemnment Officers Pension scheme [NILGOSC) but from 1 Aprii 2015 a number of siaff transferred
employment from the Planning Service and consequently the Council now also contributes to the Civil
Service pension scheme. The council will continue ta monitor the pensions liability of the NILGOSC scheme.

There were no material or unusual charges or credits in the accounts in the yeor.

Over the remaining life of the Council (2015-2019) the Council s planning to update its leisure and
community facilities. The Council has no plans to reduce services.

Council's cument borrowing facilities have not changed since last year the only change to the facility in
year has been the bi-yearly principal repayments. A number of capital projects are underway. The major
non-cuirent asset acquisition was Ecos Science Park £1.4m. There were no major disposals during the year.

Councii has a Capital fund of £5.3m {2015/16 £8.3m) availoble to meet its capital expenditure plans. The
Council has a Capital plan over 4 years and established Prudential Indicators 1o determine affordabillity.
The Council is within its borrowing boundary. It also has a Fund to address future major mainienance
dredging at it's harbours and marinas. The Council has a number of Hire Purchase financial commitments
relating 1o legacy Council vehicle purchases. Fuiure fleet investment will be financed both by revenue and
PWLB loans. The Council has no PFl schemes.

The Council has conlingencies in relation fo the ARC21 energy from waste project, landfill site closure
aftercare costs, self insurance, outstanding job evaluation and legal challenges fo its Planning Service.
Council has also established a fund to provide for any significant costs related to keeping the Gobbins Cliff
Path open following for example perieds of inclement weather.

There were no material events aller the reporling date.

The Council will continue fo monitor the economic climate and plan accordingly.



Statement of the Council's and Chietf Financial Officer’s Responsibllitles for the Statement of Accounts
The Council's Responsibilities
Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall make arangements for

the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall designate an officer of the council as its chief financiol
officer and these arangements shall be carried oul under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northemn Ireland) 2015 the Council,
or a Committee, is required by resolution, 1o approve the accounts,

These accounts were approved by the Audit & Scrutiny Commitiee on 25th September 2017.
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilitles

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Govermment {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015, the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in Ihe form directed by the
Department for Communilies.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure ond cash flows for the financial year and
the financial position as at the end of the financial yeor.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

. observe the Accounis Direction issued by ihe Department for Communities including compliance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authorily Accounting in the United Kingdom

. follow relevont accounling and disclosure requirements and apply suvitable occounting policies on o
consistent basis, and

. make judgements and estimates that are reasenable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
. keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

. take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.



Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
Scope of Responsibllity

Mid and East Antrim Borough Council {the Council'} is responsible for ensuring that ils business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded ond properly accounted for,
ond used econcmically, efficiently and effectively, The Council also has a duty under Local Government [Best
Value) Act (Northem Ireland} 2002 to make arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effecliveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arangements for the
governance of its alfairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arangements for the
management of risk,

The Council is required 1o prepare an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the principles of the.
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This statement explains how the
Council meets the requirements of Reguiation 4 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulalions
{Northern Ireland) 2015 in relation to the publication of a statement on intemal control.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The govemance framework comprised of the systems and processes, ond culture and values, by which the Council is
directed and controlled and ils activities through which it accounis o, engoges with and leads the community. It
enables the Council fo monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and 1o consider whether those objectives
have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The syslem of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 1o manage risk to a reasonable
level. It cannot eiminate alt risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide
reasonable ond not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internaol conirol is based on an ongoing
process designed to identity and pricritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, cims and objeciives,
to evaluote the likelihood of those risks being redlised and the impact should they be realised, and 1o manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.

The Governance Framework has been in place for the yeor ended 31 March 2017 and up fo the dote of approval of
the financial siatements.



The Governance Framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council's governance arrangements
include the following;

- Identitying and communicaling the Council's vision of its purpose and Intended oulcomes for citizens and
service users.

Mid and East Anfrim Borough Council agreed its first Corporate Plon 2015-2019 prior to Council
commencing the implemeniation of its full legal duties on 1 April 2015. The Corporate Plan is a statement of
Council's intent, describing Council’s aims and ambitions over a four year period and how Council will
achieve its vision of "Mid and East Antrim: Working together 1o create a better future for all”.

With new responsibilities and a broader range of powers, combined with a partnership approoch, Mid and
East Antrim Borough Council will be stronger, more effective and flexible to local need, always being
focused on our cilizens. Council fully recognise that in the cument economic climate it is even more
important 1o make every penny count and account for every penny. That is what our citizens expect and
ihat is what they deserve. Mid and East Antrim Borough Council will focus on delivering excellent services
and value for money services.

The Corporate Plan will bring logether the key priorities of all public service across Mid and East Antrim o
ensure that public resources are used to the best effect ond in line with citizen need. Council have agreed
five inlegraied strategic priorities to deliver its vision of working together to create a better fuiure for all,

1. Growing the Economy;

2. Developing Our Tourism Potential;

3. Building Stronger, Safe and Healthy Communities;

4, Delivering Excellent Services; and

5. Developing a High Performing Council.

Council have esiablished seven values, which will allow Council fo R.E.A.LLS.E ils vision.

s Respect s Integrity
e Excellence & Service innovation
s A jeamwork approach ¢ Equality and fairness

¢ Leadership and commitment

. Revlewing the Councll's vision and its implications for the Council's governance amangements.

Council monitor and review the Corporate Plan on a six monthly basis, reporting on progress achieved in
relation to delivery of its five strategic priorities and their associated objectives.

Each of the six monthly Corporate Plan progress reports are reported to Full Council for scrufiny and
approval.



Measuring the quality of services for users through the Cilizen Satistaction Survey, for ensuring they are
delivered in accordance with the Council's objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of
resources.

One of the key Strategic priorilies contained within the Council's Corporate Plan is that of "Delivering
Excellent Services™. An objective under this strotegic priority is o establish measurable service standards
which will demonstrate Council's commitment to the provision of high quality, effective yel value for money
services.

The measurement of quality of service for users is undertaken in the form of service business plans, which are
submitted to the relevant Council Commitiees for approval ond subsequently monitored and scrufinised by
Audit and Scrutiny Committee in terms of performance. During 2016717 Council developed service business
plans, which are based on delivering efficient, effective and value for money services, in line with customer
need.

Service Business Plans including performance updates demaonstrate clear linkage to the Corporate Plon.
The Business Plons and performance updates were reviewed annually and monitored by the Senior
Management Team, Directors and Heads of Service.

As part of the development of Council's Community Plan, consuderable community consuitation has taken
place in relation to the Quality of Life Indicators.

Councillor - Senior Officer engagement is a crifical element in ensuring that service delivery meets the
requirements of ratepayers.

Council financial performance is assessed through regular budget meetings and is reported to Council
periodically. Value for money oudiling is also considered by both Internal and External Audit when
conducting their programme of reviews,

Defining and documenting the roles ond responsibilities of the executive, non-execullve, scrutiny and officer
functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication.

The Council fulfils its function by way of Full Council meetings and six standing Committees. Commitiee
places are allocaied proporfionately io political parties using the quola greatest remainder method as
prescribed by the Local Government Act. All Council and Commitiee decisions are recorded, minuted and
available for public inspection.

The roles, responsibilities and order for the governance of Council is contained within Council's Constitution
ond Standing Orders {last revised June 2016). All Councillors and Directors are issued with a copy of the
Council's Standing Crders. Council have established a Scheme of delegafion (last reviewed June 2016),
which details the decision making powers delegated by Full Council to Committees and Senior Officers.
Council also has a range of other procedures and protocols in place to ensure roles ore adequotely
defined, for example, Protocol for the operation of the Planning Commitiee, Prolocol for the establishment
of Working Groups, etc.

The Chief Executive is the head of the paid officers of Council. She is responsible and accountable to the
Council for all aspects of Council funclions including Finance and Human Resources.



Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of behaviour for
members and staff.

The Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 intfroduced an ethical standards framewaork for local
government. A key element of the ethical standards fromework was the intfroduction of a mandatory
Northern Irelond Locol Government Code of Conduct for Councillors, which imposes a requirement for
Councillors o observe the Code and establishes mechanisms for the investigation and adjudication of
written complaints that a Councillor has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Code.

A number of policies and guidance documents have been established for Members to provide clarity on
their roles in light of the Code of Conduct.

The Council has odopted the Local Government Staff Commission Code of Conduct for Local Govemment
employees and this was circulated 1o all officers.

A number of specific policies have been introduced, as guided by the employees Code of Conduct,
including policies on harassment, equality and gifts and hospitality.

Reviewing and updafing standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of delegation and
supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and ihe processes and
controls required to manage risks,

Council Standing Orders were last revised in June 2017. Council's Scheme of Delegation was last reviewed
in June 2016. Standing financial instructions are contained in Council's Finance Policy Manual, which was
approved in March 2015. These delail the processes and controls that exist for all financial ironsactions
within Council.

Council has alse established a portfolio of policies and procedures under its Constitution.

Council has a Risk Managemeni Strategy in place, which requires the idenfification of both Corporate and
Service risks, ossessment of impact and likelihood of those risks and the miligating controls in place. Council
has a Corporate Risk Register in place which is reviewed by the Senior Management Team on a regular
basis and presented to Audit and Scrutiny Commitiee throughout the vear,

Council developed asuite of Service Risk Registers that will encapsulate all key risks that have the poteniial
o adversely impact the delivery of core Council services. A summary of each Service Risk Register is also
included within each associoted Service Business Plon demonstrating the interlinkage between these two
processes of good governance.

Undertaking the core funcilons of an Audit Commiiiee, as identified in CIPFA's Audit Committees - Practical
Guidonce for Local Authoritles.

Council's Audit and Scrutiny Committee undertakes the core functions of an audit committes as identified
in CIPFA's Audit Commitees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities.
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The Audit and Scruliny Commitiee met nine times during 2016/17. Five of these meetings were dedicated 1o

the areas of audit, risk management, internal controls and finoncial reporling. The Audit and Scrutiny
Commitiee has an established Terms of Reference(last reviewed November 2016).

Internal audit findings and risk management information were repored to the Commitiee during the year
and other information, such as, the work of NIAO.

Council appainied an Independent Member to the Audit ond Scrutiny Commitiee in November 2015.

The Audit and Scrufiny Committee reviewed iis performance in May 2017 using the self-assessment checkiist
confained within the Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police {2013 Edition).

Ensuring compliance with relevant lows and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and thot
expenditure Is lawful.

The Chief Execuiive is also the Council's Chief Financial Officer, as outlined in Section 1 of the Local
Gaovernment Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011, The Chief Financial Officer is charged with ensuring the
lawlulness and financial prudence of decision-making, providing advice and guidance and ensuring that
expenditure incumed was lawful,

The Council’s financial management arrangements does not comply with Principle 5 "The CFO in a local
authority must be professionaliy qualified and suitably experienced" of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of

the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) as set out in the Application Note 1o Delivering Good

Governance in Local Govemnment: Framework, as the Council's designoted Chief Financial Officer is not a
professionally qualified accountant and the role of Chief Financial Officer and Chief Execulive are not
separate within the Council. The arangements in place are not considered fo compromise the Council's
financial management amangements in any way as the Chief Financial Officer is supported by ihe Director
of Finance and Governance, a fully qualified accountant, ensuring that the decisions made by the Chief
Financial Officer are based on sound technical knowledge and undersionding. This amangement complies
with the current legislation in Northem Ireland - section i {2} of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern
Ireland) 2011.

Financial regulations are contained in the Council's Finance Policy Manual. These have been approved by
Council. They are mode available 1o all staff through publication on Council's internal computer network
drive and are updated and maintained within the Finance Department. Any oveniding of Financial
procedures requires Council approval.

Two Members of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee attend the review of Council purchase ledger
transactions, payroll transactions and treasury management fransactions prior 1o each monthly meeting.
The purpose of this aclivity is 1o allow payment to be recommended fo the Full Councii at the monthly
Council meeting. Council retain the service of a solicitor for any legal guidance.

The internat audit function is outsourced and provides on independent opinion on compliance issues.
Council's Internal Audit Service Provider was appoinied for the period of 15t April 2015 to 3151 March 2017.

The Council have a Fraud Policy (last reviewed November 2014) in place, which was circulated to oll siaff
and Elected Members. The Froud Policy is also published on Council's website.
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Whistle-blowing, recelving and investigating compluinis from the publlc.

Council have a Whistleblowing Policy {last reviewed November 2014} In place. This policy was circulated to
all staff and Elected Members. The Whistleblowing Policy is also published on Council's website.

Council's Whistleblowing Policy was activated twice during 2016/17. One of the whistleblowing allegations
has been fully investigated and has resulied in the implementalion of new intermnal controls. The other
allegation is still under investigaiion.

Council have established a corporale Complainis Policy and recording system which is mainicined by the
Policy Team. The majority of complaints received by Council are managed and resolved informally by the
service area. A small number, however, which cannot be resolved informally or are deemed of such a
nature that they should be managed formally from the outsel, are registered as a Formal Complaint.

Between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, 27 complainis have been recorded as Formal, Stoge 1.

Of those format complainis received, 3 have been forwarded 1o the second stage i.e. Formal, Stage 2 to be
managed by the Chief Execulive's Office.

Of those stage 2 formal complaints, 3 have been forwarded to the Office of the Northern Ireland Public
Services Ombudsman [NIPSO). NIPSO has closed 1 of the those complaints.

The Compilaints Policy does not extend to complaints in relation to Elected Members as these ore dealt
directly by NIPSQ.

Identifying the development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their strategic roles,
supported by appropriate tralning.

A Training Needs Analysis has been camied out for oll Elected Members. Members have underiaken o
diverse range of training aclivilies in order to provide them with the capacity and capability to fulfil their
role efficiently and effectively. Some of the training provided 1o Members has covered ihe key oreas of:
- Community Planning

- Planning

- Declaration of Inferests

- Standing Orders

- Audit and Scruting Committee

A staff Training Needs Analysis will be undertaken following the full implementation of Council's new staffing
structures. Training will then be organised as per the identified training plans.
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Esiablishing clear channels of communication with oll sections of the community and other stakeholders,
ensuring accountabllity and encouraging open consultation.

Communication is critically important to ensure the community in which the auihority exists and other
stakeholders are fully aware of Council's aims and cbjectives. Council ufilises various mediums by which to
communicale within and oulside the Borough. such as the Council website, publications, brochures,
leaflets, social media {Facebook, twitter) and media advertisemenis/broadcasts.

Duiing 2016/17 Council published three editions {Spring, Summer, Autumn) of its ralepayer magazine "Mid
and East Antrim Connections” which was delivered to all households throughout the Borough.

Councillors and officers sit on many parinerships and community groups throughout the borough. A
significant amount of rescurce was used fo create highly developed networks that permit communication
and assist Council o achieve iis vision.

All documenis are made available in accessible formats such as large print or audic casselle andin
minority longuages to meet the needs of those who are noft fluent in English.

In producing Council's Performance Improvement Pian for 2017/18 Officers undertook a wide ranging
consullalion process with Council Staff, Elected Members and the general public. The consultation process
ran for a 12 week period and included public consultotion events in Ballymena, Carrickfergus and Larme.

Council are progressing the Local Developmeni Plan for the Mid and East Antrim Borough. The Local
Development Pian will guide the fulure spatial land use within Mid and Easl Antrim, apply regional policies
at the appropriate local level and inform the general public, statutory authorities, developers and other
interesied bodies of the planning policy fromework and land use proposals within the Borough. In August
2014, Council pubiished a Stalemeni of Community Involvement to set out how the public can become
involved in planning matters, including the Local Development Plan process. The timetable published at
that fime has now been reviewed and o revised timetable will be published in June 2017. Council is
scheduled 1o commence a 12 week consultation period in relation to the Preferred Options Paper which
marks the first significant milestone in the development of the Locol Development Plan.

Through the medium of Community Planning, Council have actively consulied with the various community
groups. networks and clusters that make up the Borough's community and voluntary sector. Through
Council's Community Planning Governance Framework, Council have created o Community Panel, in
agreement wilth the community, which provides the community with a formalised channel by which o put
forward community needs and concems. The Community Panel is also represented on Council's
Community Planning Strategic Allionce, which includes Council representatives and key decision maokers

. from ocross the wider public sectior and statutory agencies,
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In the lead up to the publication of the Barough's first Community Pion, Council undertook a thorough and
wide ranging consultation process with key stakeholders and residents of the Borough, This consultation
process commenced on 10 January 2017 and ran for a 8 week period.

Mid and East Anirim published its first Community Plen "Putting People First” on 31 March 2017.

Council led and participated in a schools Youth Engogement Programme in parinership with Ballymena

Leaming Together, Carrickiergus Learning Communilies, Lame Learning Communities and the Children &
Young Peopies Strategic Partnership targeting post primary schools in the Mid and East Antrim area. The

Youth Engagement Programme 1ook place during Ociober 2016 and was aimed at:

- Engaging young people in civic life;

- Increasing dialogue and involvement belween Council and young pecple;

- Giving a voice to young people within Mid and East Antrim; and

- Involving young people within good relations acfivities and dialogue.,

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting. at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance
framework including the system of intermnal conirol. The review of effectiveness was informed by the work of the
execulive managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual report, and also by commenis made by the extermnal

The process that has been applied In maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework:-

Members

A commiliee structure is in place within Council which provides Eiected Members with o democratic
mechanism by which fo approve and scrutinise Council business. All Commitiee places are allocoted
through the D'Hondt method.

Council business is governed by Council Stonding Orders and Commitiee Terms of References to ensure thot
the tronsaction of the business of Council and its Committees is properly regulated and conducted in an
efficient, fair and legal manner.
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Senior Officers

The Chief Executive leads the Council's Senior Management Team to colleclively have involvement in and
oversight of the processes involved in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance
framework.

In doing so the Senior Management Team regularly reviewed:
- Full Council and Committee Actions;

- Corporaie Risk Register;

- Corporate Health and Saiety;

- Internal and External Audit Reports;

- New and revised Council Policies;

- Depanmental Business Plans;

- Council performance against the priorilies set within the Corporate Plan;
- Business Cases;

- Procurement Aclions;

- Human Resource Permissions;

- Financial réporting:; eic.

Audit and Scrutiny Committee

The Audit and Scrutinyg Committee met nine fimes during 2016/17. Five of these meetings were dedicaled to

the areas of audil, risk management, internal controls and financial reporting. The Audit and Scruliny
Committee has an Independent Member. The internal and external auditors alend meetings as
appropriate. The Audit and Scrutiny Committee approved a risk based intemal audit plan for 2016/17 ond
considered the findings of internal audit reviews and the external audit reports {Annual Audit Lelter and
Report to those charged with Governance).

The Audit and Scruliny Commitiee reviews the Inlernal Audil function on an annual basis and through the
Internal Audit Assurance Statement provided by the Internal Auditor ensured that its internal conlrols, risk
management and governance are adequate and elfective and that it has o sound system of internal
control.

The effecliveness of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee was reviewed at the Audit and Scruting Committee
of 22 May 2017. This was done using the self-assessment checklist in the Audii Committees: Practical
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2013 Edition). The Committee was satisfied with its overall
performance when compared against the checklist. In addition, the implementation of recommendations
in Infernal and External Audit Reports were reviewed.
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Internal Audit

Council's Internal Audit function is externally sourced and provides an independent opinion on the Council's
Govermnance Framework,

An annval review of the Infernal Audit function has been camied out in accordance with the recommended
checklist provided in the CIPFA Local Government Application Note for the UK Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards {PSIAS). 2013. This review was presented to the Audit and Scrutiny Commitiee on' 22 May 2017,
along with the Annual Internal Audit Assurance Report. Internal Audit reported compliance with the
standards.

Internal Audit carried out six Assurance reviews during 20146/17, with each review altaining a Safisfactory
Assurance Roting. There were no priority one recommendations received during 2016/17.

Based on the conclusions of the 2016/17 Internal Audit Programme, Infernal Audit have provided the

Council's Chief Financial Officer with an overall assurance rating of ‘Satisfactory’ in relalion to the Council's
system of internal confrol.

Other expliclt review/assurance

Council reviewed its Corporate Risk Register during 2016/17. Action Plans for each Corporate Risk have
been formulated in terms of likelihood and impact.

Directors completed Annual Risk Monogement Assurance Statements.

External audit by the NIAO during the year, gave Council an unqualified audit opinion in relation to their
accounts for 2015/16.

The Seven Towers Leisure Centre retained the QUEST UK Quality Scheme for Sport and Leisure accreditation
in January 2017.

Council's performance Improvement plan and its arangements to deliver improvement for 2016/17 have
been exlernally audifed and assessed by NIAO who provided an audit cerdification that council's
improvement responsibilities have been met for 2016/17, but it was too early in the framework to determine
what improvements would be made.

All Service areas within Council's Lame Offices have retained the Environmental Management Quality
Stondard 1SO 14001. Environmental Health and Building Control {Larne Section) have retained the Quality
Management Standard 15O 2001.

Ballymena and Canickfergus Museums are accredited to the Arts Council England Accreditation Scheme.

Camfunnock Couniry Park {Grade 4}, Carrickfergus Museum (Grade 4] ond Larne Museum [Grade 3} are all
accredited by the NITB.

A number of Council Parks have been awarded the Green Fiag environmenial standard.

Council attained joint first place in the Keep Northern Irelond Beautiful survey in relation 1o street cleanliness
when compared against other Northern Ireland Local Authorifies.



The Council was advised on ihe implicalions of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the govermnance
framewaork, and a plan 1o aoddress weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system were put in place.

Significant Governance Issuves

The review of effectiveness by Senior Managers within the Council identified the following issues because of the risks
they present.

NIAQ highlighted a priority 1 issue in relation 1o procurement during the course of their audit of the 2015/16 and
2016/17 accounts. Senior Management commissioned an internal audit review of this area and the resulting
recommendoations were implemented by Council in order to strengthen internal controls and mitigate such an issue
happening again. A revised Procurement Policy, Officer Procedures and Training Plan are scheduled o be
implemented across Council early 2017/18,

Management identified an isolated issue in relation 1o o PCSP grant funding claim during 2016/17. As a result of this
an internal audit review was caried out into the specific issue and a number of recommendaotions were made and
are being implementied to ensure such insiances do not happen again.

We propose over the coming year 1o take steps to address the above matiers to further enhance our governance
arrangements. We are salisfied thot these sieps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our
review of effectiveness and will moniter their implementation and operation as part of our next annua! review.

Signed ...\ Ui S Date 25th Seplember 2017
Chief Executive

Mid and East Antrim B

Date 25th September 2017

Chalrman of Audit ond Scrutiny Commiitee
Mid and East Antrim Borough Council
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES
REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
INTRODUCTION

The Local Government [Accounts and Audil) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government
bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to counciltors and commitiee members under Parl 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act {Northern lreland) 2011 and The Local Government {Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2012, which came into operation an 1 April 20012,

Follewing a review of allowances, camied out by an independent Councillors' Allowances Remuneration Panel,
which was appoinied in May 2013, the then Minister of the Environment advised the Northem Ireland Assembly in o
written statement of the new levels of allowances applicable for councillors from 1 April 2015.

A consolidoted document on Guidance and determinations on Councillors' Allowances applicable from 1 April 2017
were issued by the Department for Communities on January 2017 , The determinations and rates have been updated
in LG 03/2017 . Dedails of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on council websites.

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term.,
Mid and East Antrim Borough Council had 40 counciltors in 2016/17.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES
The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by ithe Council in line with that

determined by the National joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are
members of the Executive Management Team/Senior Managemeni Teom.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions' Code
of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and
open competition.

Unless ofherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-ended.

ALLOWANCES PAID TO CCUNCILLORS

The total omount paid to Councillors by way of aliowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act
{Northem Irelond) 2011 and the Local Govemment (Payments {o Councillors) Regulations [Northern Ireland) 2012 was:



Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors (audited information)

Allowance 201617 2015/14
Total Allowances Number of Total Allowances Number of
£ Councillors receiving £ Councillors receiving
the Allowance the Allowance
Basic Allowance 571,258 40 565,365 41
Speciol Responsibility 54,372 26 54,000 12
Allowance
Chairperson/Deputy 7.272 2 7.465 2
Mayor Aliowance
Vice Chairperson/ 6,060 2 6,000 1
|Deputy Mayor
Mileage Allowance 47.410 34 50,577 36
|Public Transport and - 0 28 0
Other Travel Incidentals
Subsisience - 0 191 &)
Courses/ Conferences 6,733 32 6,294 36
Visits {regisiration &
joining fees)
Dependents Carers - 0 - 0l
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 493,105 689,922
Detaoils of the adllowonces paid to individual councillors in 2016/17 are published on the council website at
www.midandeastanirim.gov.uk/council/policies-and-documents/financial-reports/councillors-allowances-return-
2016-17.
REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES
The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team. The
following table provides details of the remuneration paid o senior employees in 2016/17:
201617 2015/14
Bonus Total Bonus R Total
enefits
Salary (Full Al Benefits in Payminis in kind
year equivalent kind (to Salary (Full year (to nearest
In brackets neorest £100) equivalent in £100)
where A brackets where
applicable) applicable)
Officers £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Anne Donaghy
Chief Executive )
110-115 0 0 110-115 100-105 o] 0 100-105
sandra Cole
|Direcior of Finance
and Governance
80-85 0 21 80-85 75-80 0 18 75-80
Philip Thompson
Director of Operations
80-85 o 0 80-85 75-80 0 0 75-80
Karen Hargan
Direcior of
Organisational Design
& Community Planning
80-85 0 0 80-85 75-80 0 0 75-80
Linda Wiliams
Director of Economic 5-10 {75-80)
Development (appointed
st March
75-80 0 o 75-80 2018} 0 o 5-10 (75-80)
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The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior Management
Team in the financiol year 2014/17 was £105k - £110k. This was 4.8 times the median remuneralion ot the workiorce.
which was £23k.

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest poid member of the Execulive Management
Team/Senlor Manaogement Team and the median remuneration of the Counclls workforce [audited Information)

2016/17 2015/16
£000 £000

Salary Band of Highesi Paid member of the
Executive Management Team/ Senior 110-115 100-105
Median Total Remuneration 23 23
Ratlio 4.8:1 4.8:1

In 2014/17. no employees received remunergtion in excess of Ihe highest paid member of the Executive
Management Team/Senior Managemeni Teom.

Tolal remuneration includes salary, bonus paymenis and benefits in kind.

Salary
"Salary” includes gross salary, overlime, and any gratia payments

Bonus Payments

Bonus paymenis are based on performance levels aitained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses
relale to the performance in the year in which they become payabie 1o 1he individual, The bonuses reported in
2016/17 relate to performance in 2016/17.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefils in kind covers any benefiis provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue
and Customs as a taxable emolument,

Exit Packages for staff
The number of exit packages provided to aoll stoff by the Council during 2016/17, together with lotol cosl per band
and tolal cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exil Packoges In 2015/17 {audited information}

TOVE]T7 2015/16
Number of | Number of Totol Yolal Cost Number of |Numberol| Tolal | Tolal Costol
Compulsory Other Number of of Compulsory Other | Number | Packoges in
Severance Package [Redundancies| deporfures Exit Packoges | Redundancles |departures| of Exit each Cost
Cos! Band agreed |Packogesin| Ineach agreed |Package Band
each Cost | Cost Band s In each £'000
Band £'000 Cosl
Boand
£0- £20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£20.001 - £40,000 0 0 0 4] 0 i 1 24
£40,001 - £60,000 1] 0 0 0 0 3 K| 140
£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£80,001 - £100.,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150.000 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 240
£150.001 - £200.000 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 355
£200.000+ 0 1 i 211 0 4 4 1,036
Total 0 I 1 211 0 12 12 1,795
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Pension Benefits

The Local Governmeni Pension Scheme {Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) is a funded defined benelit pension scheme,
which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a "career average revalued earnings” basis from 1 April
2015. Prior {0 that date benefits were built up on a *final salary™ basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rale of 1/49th pensionable poy for each year.
Pension benefits in relation to membership beiween 1 April 20092 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of
1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of
membership aller 31 March 2009. Pension benefils in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were builf up al
the rale of 1/80th {pension) and 3/80ihs (tax-free lump sum) of pensicnable pay for each year of membership up 1o
31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject o HM Revenue
and Customs (HMRC] limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillers have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the
fact that counciliors hold an elecied office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average
basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafler at a rate of 1/4%th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/counciliors and employers. Prior 1o 1 April 2009, a
member’s contribution rates were fixed al 6% of their pensionable remuneration [except for those who were entilled
to contribute o the Scheme ot 5% before 1 February 2003 ond have remained in continuous employment). Tiered
member contribulion rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were intfroduced from 1 April 2009.
From 1 April 2015, the member confribution rates are determined on the actual raie of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Depariment for Communities in April each
year in accordance wilh the increase applied to o pension in payment. The bands, effective from 1 Aprit 2016, were
as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
] £0- £14,000 5.50%
2 £14,001 - £21,300 5.80%
3 £21,301 - £35,600 6.50%
4 £35,601 - £43,000 : 6.80%
5 £43,001 - £85,000 B.50%
6 More than £85.000 10.50%

Employers' contribution rates are determined by ihe fund's actuary every three years at the Iriennial valuation. The
2013 friennial valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2013 ond an employer contribution rate of 20% for those
employers whose parlicipation in the Scheme is deemed to be indefinite has been set for the following three years,
effective from 1 Aprit 2014:
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Table &: Employer Contrlbution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 20%
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2014 20%
1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017 0%
1 April 2017 - 31 March 2018 18% (plus apprentice levy)

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The
Local Government Pension Scheme {Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations {Narthern Ireland) 2014

were made on 30 June 2014, Both sets of regulations are eftective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits
thus far, However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2016/17 was

£117.934,

The value of pension benefits of the mast senior managemeit of the Council accrued during the year was as foliows:

Table 7: Pension Benelits of senlor staff in 2016/17 (audited Information)

Officers Accrued Pension at Real increase in CETV at CETV at |Real increase in CETV
pension age as at penslon and related 31/3N17 31/3/18
3/3N7 lump sum at pension
Anne Donaghy 30-35 2.5-5 (45-47.5 LS} 410 362 33
Sandra Cole 25-30 0-2.5 (50-52.5 LS) 460 413 34
Philip Thompson 25-30 0-2.5 {47.5 -50LS) 377 340 27
Karen Hargon 10-15 0-2.5 [0-2.5 LS} 121 97 14
Linda Williams 0-5 0-2.5 [0-2.5 LS} 15 1 7

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value {CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits occrued by a member ot o
particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefifs and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme. It is o payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement io secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
pension benefits they have accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the
individual has accrued as a consequence of their fotal membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a
senior capacily o which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension
Schemes (Transfer Volues) (Amendmeni) Regulations ond do not take account of ony actual or potential reduction
1o benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

The real Increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued
pension due fo inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits fransferred from
another pension scheme or arangernent) and uses common market valuation factors for the starl and end of the
period.

Chief Executive
Date: 25th September 2017
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Cerlificote of the Chlef Financial Officer

| certify that:

(a)  the Stotement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017 on pages 26 to 93 has been prepared in the
form directed by the Depariment for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 30
o 51.

{b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and
cash fiows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31st
March 2017.

Chlef Financial Officer

Date 25th September 2017

Councll Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Council/Commitiee on 25 September 2017,

d%a‘\v@é
Chalrmen

Date 25th September 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MID AND EAST ANTRIM
BOROUGH COUNCIL

| have audited the financial statements of Mid and East Antrim Borough Council for the year ended
31 March 2017 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements
comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them. | have also audited the
information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Members of Mid and East Antrim Borough Council in accordance
with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in
the Statement of Responsibilities.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’'s and Chief Financial Oificer's Responsibilities,
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to
audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. | conducted my audit in accordance with
international Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to Mid and East Antrim Borough Council's circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by Mid and East Antrim Borough Council; and the overall presentation
of the financial statements. In addition | read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Statement of Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If | become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the implications for my report.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and
statutory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016-17, of the financial position of Mid and East Antrim Borough
Council as at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
and

» the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the
Department for Communities’ directions issued thereunder.



Opinion on other matters
In my opinion:

+ the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Department for Communities’ directions made under the Local Government
(Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

» The information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:

s in my opinion:;
o the Annual Governance Statement:
*» does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17;
» does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;
* is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or
o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
o the Statement of Accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
o | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or
» | issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
ireland) Order 2005; or
» | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or
* | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Mid and East Antrim Borough Council in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the
Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

.

Louise Mason

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street
Belfast

BT7 1EU

b September 2017



Mid and East Antrim Borough Council
Movement in Reserves Stalement for the yeor ended 31 March 2017

General  Ofherfund  Capial T

d  Receipls tal Usoble  Total Unusable

Reserve Reserve Re

B T SN ' £ SE=eeTa T £ Sz £ 15 RGN £
Balance as at 1 April 2015 3,488,290 15,043,078 257,940 18,789,308 76,410,237
Movement in reserves
during the year

Surplus/ {Deficit) on the

provision of services 12.108,335) ) ) (2.108,335) )

Cther Comprehensive

. - - . ) 426.1
Income and Expenditure 16,426,178

95,199,545

[2.108,335)

16,426,178

Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjusiments between :

accounting basis & 5,591,139 {4,904 45%) (216,240} 470,440 (470,440}
funding under regulations

Met increase before

transters to Statutory and 3,482,804 (4,904,459) {214,240) (1,437,895) 15,955,738
Other Reserves

Transfers to / from :

Stotutory and Other {3.153.582) 3,153,982 - - -
Reserves

(2,108,335) - 5 (2,108,335) 14,426,178

Increase/ (Decrease) In

year 328,822  (1,750,477)  (214,240) (1,637.,895) 15,955,738

14,317,843

14,317,843

14,317,843

Balance as at 31 March 2014 3817112 13,292,401 17,151,413 92,365,975
Movement in reserves
during the year

Surpl.u.s/ [Deﬁcul]. on the (6.546,929) g 2 (6,546.929)
provision of services

Qther Comprehensive
A - _ i I
‘ncome and Expenditure 2717902

109,517,388

{6.546.929)

12,717,902

Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure (6,546,927) {6.546,929) 12,717,902

Adjustiments belween .
accounting basis & 8.342,880 {4,215,001) [{41,700) 4,086,179 14,086,179}
funding under regulaticns

Net increase before

transfers o Statutory and 1,795,951 (4,215,001} {41,700) (2.460,750) 8,631,723
Other Reserves

Transfers to / from .

Statutory ond Other [1.642.420) 1,642,420 . -

Reserves

;“::“’e’ (Decrease) in 153,531  (2.572.581) {41,700} (2,460,750) 8,631,723

Balance as at 31 March 2017 3,970,643 10.720.020 14,690,663 100,997,698

6,170,973

6,170,973

6,170,973

115,688,351



Mid and East Antrim Berough Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

201817 2015/146

- ol
a
i

AFs ey |
ég'r’v‘ffes"”d Recrealional 5 24215325  (4.636.436) 19,578,889 24,535,232 {3,983,605) 20,551,627
Environmenial Services 2 21573861 . (3.204399)  18.369.462 21,099,168 2.950.755) 18,148,413
oL C 2 10474792 (3079.562)  7.595.230 7,953,108 14,685,639} 3,267,469
Development Services
?;?v“i‘g:sys Ll Uil ) 1,785,758 {1,163,784) 621,974 789,434 (1,133,257) (343,823)
e e 2 4,586,295 (66223} 4520072 4170021 (247,245 3,922,776
Management
Other Services 2 1,571,731 (663,194) 908,537 1,919,439 (767.320) 1,152,119
(SCE} ST T 64,407,762 (12,813,598) 51,594,164 60,466,402 (13,767.821) 46,698,581
Conlinuing Operations
Other Operating ) )
bl 7 192,734 192,734 (8.399) (8.399)
Financing and lnvesimenl 5 3059806  (193706)  3.796,100 4,552,682 (195.552) 4,357,130

Income and Expenditure

Net Operating Expenditure 68,590,302  (13,007,304) 55,582,998 65,019,084 (13,971,772) 51,047,312

Taxation and Non-Specific )
Gront Income 9 [49.036,069) [49.036,06%) (48,938,977) {48,938.977)

Rl betich DRl 68,590,302  (62.043,373)  (6.546,929) 65,019,084 {62,910,749) (2.108,335)

Provision of Services

{Surplus)/Deficit on

revaluation of non-curent 10 21,572,902 10,438,178
assets

Remeasurements of the

Net Defined Benefit 20 {8.855,000}) 5,988,000
Liability {Asset)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 12,717,902 16,424,178
Tota! Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 6,170,973 14,317,843



Mid and East Antrim Borough Council
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

31st March 2014

e T

Fixed Assets 10 203,079,219 184,621,426

Long Term Investments 15 & -
Invesiment in Associotes
ond Joint Ventures

Long Term Debtors 14 1,380,438 1,459,598
LONG TERR ASSETS 20 184,081,024
Short Term Investmenis 15 11,428,944 11,967,839
Inventories 13 258.423 235,839
Short Term Debtors 14 4,051,582 4,631,241
Cash and Cash Equivalents 24 70,478 3,366,498
Assets Held for Sale 10 - -

CURRENRT ASSETS

Bank Overdraft 24 126,995 2,924
Short Term Bomowing 16 3,666,874 3617913
Short Term Creditors i7 6,388,313 5,181,878
Provisions i8 525771 - 737,250

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Term Creditors 17 - . -
Provisions 18 1.966.576 2074011
Long Term Borowing 16 57,622,194 61,286,293
Other Long Term Liabiiities 20 34,284,000 23,864,782
Donated Assels Account 21 - -
Capital Granis Receipts in Advance 22 - -
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 93,872,770

NET ASSETS 115688361 109.517,388
USABLE RESERVES

Capitol Receipts Reserve 25 . 41,700
Capital Granis Unapplied Account 25 - 296,440
Capital Fund 25 5,251,439 8,310,000
Renewal and Repairs Fund 25 2,725.617 2428197
Other Balances and Reserves 25 2742964 2,257,964
General Fund 25 3,970,643 3.817.112

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Copital Adjustment Account 26 70,775,834 71,426,609
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 26 - -
Revaluation Reserve 26 65,367,169 45,368,349
Available for Sale Financial Insiruments Reserve 26 - =
Pensions Reserve 26 {34,284,000) {23,842,000)
Caopital Receipts Deferred Account 26 - -
Accumulated Absences Account 26 {861,305) {566,983)
Landfill Regulations Reserve 24 - -
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 26

NET WORTH 115,688,361 109,517,388



Mid ond East Antrim Borough Council
Cash Flow Slatement ot 31 Morch 2017

2016/17 315711

ei ecl on the rovision o services —— ; — © (6,544,929) [2.I08.336
Adjustiment for non-cash movernents 24a 11,118,532 10,627,259
Brovision of semices ol ore esing and fnoncing aciiiies 240 dsase {4
Net cash Hows from operating activities 24 4,977,057 8,224,982
Cash flows from Investing Activities 24d {4.779.226) {4,952,512)
Net Cash fiows from Financing Aclivilies 24e (3,617,920} {2,414,652)
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3.420,08%) B59,818
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the reporting period 3,363,572 2,503,754

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting peried (56,517) 3,363,572



Mid and East Antrim Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's fransactions for the 2016/17
financial year and its posifion at the year-end of 31 March 2017. The Council is
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the
Department for Communities in accordance with regulations 3 {7) and (8) in the
Local Governmeni {Accounts and Audit}] Regulations (Northern Irelond) 2015 in
accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/17 and the Service Reporting Code of
Practice 2016/17 {SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention adopied in the Statement of Accounts
is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-
current assets and financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17
also requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expendifure

- Revenue from the sale of gocds is recognised when the Council transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the iransaction will flow to
the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the fransaction will flow
to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are
carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation io services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather
than when payments are made.

- Interest payable on borowings and receivable on invesiments is accounted for
on the basis of the effective inferest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
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- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debior or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Bolance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debis will be settled, the balance of
debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income thai might
not be collected.

Acquisitions

The Council has not acquired operations [or transferred operations under machinery
of government arangemenis) during the financial year.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

The Council has made a provision for the costs of settling claims for back pay arising
from discriminatory payments incurred before the Council implemented iis Single
Status Policy.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalenis
are investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisifion and
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown
net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Council's cash management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has iaken plaoce that gives the Council a
possible osset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occumrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts where it is probable thot there will be an inflow of economic
benefits or service potential.

Contingent Liabilities

A confingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are
not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts,
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Discontinued Operations

The Council has not discontinued operations (or transferred operations under
combinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.

Employee Benefils

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of ihe
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and
paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits {e.g. cars) for cument
employees, and are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees
render service 1o the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday
entitlements earned by employees but not taken befere the year-end and which
employees can camry forward into the next financial year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefiis are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal refirement date or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to
the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Staterment at the earier of:

a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or

b} when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where terminotion benefils involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory
provisions require the General Fund balonce to be charged with the amount
payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standords. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credils for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid
to the pension fund ond pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at
the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Norihern Ireland Local Governmeni
Officers’ Pension Fund administered by the Northern lrelond Local Governmeni
Officers' Superannuation Commiitee. The scheme provides defined benefits to
members {refrement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for
the Council.
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The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a
defined benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will
be made in relation to retirement benefits earmned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates , etc, and projections of
projected eamings for curent employees.

Liobilities are discounted to their value at cumrrent prices, using a discount rate of
2.6% {based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds on the
iBoxx Sterling Corporate Index, AA over 15 years with recentily re-rated bonds
removed from the index.

The asseis of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair vaiue:

quoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

Within the Cost of Services

Cumrent Service Cost - the increase in the preseni value of the defined benefit
obligation (liabilities) resuliing from employee service in the current period.

Past Service Cost - the change in the present value of the defined benefit
cobligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting from @ plan amendment
{the introduction or withdrawal of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a
curtailment {a significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the
plan}.

Any Gains or Losses on Settflement — arising where a council enters info o

transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all
of the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability {Asset] — the change in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time.
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Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure [Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net interest on the
MNet Defined Benefit Liability {Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other
income derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or
losses on the plan assets, less any costs of monaging plan ossets, and any tax
payable by the plan itself other than tax included in the actuarnial assumpfiions used
to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from: a) experience adjustments (the effecis of differences
between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and
b) the eftects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Parlicipanis — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets
due io payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution
increases pension due to the employee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into
the scheme by the emplovyer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
balance to be charged with the amouni payable by the Council to the pension
fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to
the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and crediis for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid io the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact o the General Fund of being required to
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are
earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers 1o make discretionary awards of retirement
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result
of an award to any member of staff are occrued in the year of the decision to
make the award and accounted for using the same policies that are applied o the
Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund.

34



ix)

xi}

As d result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from
Central Government 1o the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland
Civil Service (NICS) Pension Scheme. The scheme provides defined benefits to
members [retirement lump sums and pensions). However, the arrangements for NICS
Pension Scheme mean that ligbilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be
identilied specifically to the Council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it
were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future paoyment of benefits is
recognised in the Balance Sheet,

Events After the Balance Sheet Dale

Evenis after the balance sheel date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, thal occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the Slalement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of evenis can be
identified:

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period - the Stafement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such evenis

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adijusted to refiect such events, but where a category
of events would have a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature
of the evenis and their estimated financial effect.

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the dale when they
are authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and
is usually the date the Local Government Auditor issues his cerfificate and opinion.
Where material adjustments are made in this period ihey will be disclosed.

Evenls toking place affer the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is
disclosed separotely, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how
significant the items are to an wunderstanding of the Council's financial
performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or
1o correct a material emor. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e., in the current and future years affected by the change and do
not give rise to a prior period adjusiment,
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Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper
accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information
about the effect of fronsactions, other events and conditions on the Council's
financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied
retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are comected refrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall o be classified inio just one
class of financial liability and two classes of financial assets:

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Available for Sale

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are inifially
measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expendiiure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Staiement for interest payable are based on the camying
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
paymenis over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount
presented in the Balonce Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus
accrued inierest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount poyable for the year according to the loan
agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early seftlement of borrowing are credited
and debited to the Financing and Invesiment Income ond Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement in the vyeor of
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has iaken place as part of a
restruciuring of the loan portfolio that involves the medification or exchange of
existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the
loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.
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Where premiums and discounis have been charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund
Balance {o be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the
gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the
premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repoid. The
reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure
Statement o the net charge required against the District Fund Balance is managed
by a transfer to or from the Financial instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assels

Financiol assets are classified into two types:

a. loans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are
not quoted in an active market

b. available-for-sale assets — that have a quoted market price and/or do not have
fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are then measured ot their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are
based on the carying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. Mld and East Antrim Borough Council has not issued any
loans.

Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheef when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initiclly meoasured and carmied at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or
determinable payments, annual credits 1o the Financing and Investment Income
ond Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or
determinable paymenis, income {e.g., dividends) is credited io the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council.
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Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the
following principles:

a. instruments with quoted market prices — the market price

b. other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow
analysis

c. equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent oppraisal of
company valuations.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categerised in accordance with the
following three levels:

* Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asseis
that the authority can access ai the measurement date.

« Level 2 inpuls - inpuis other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 inpuls - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve
and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-
for -Sale Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been
incurred - these are debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement, along
with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-ior-Sale
Reserve,

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or
determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and
a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeni. If the asset has fixed or
determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the camying amount and the present value of the revised future cash
flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the
impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost
of the instrument {net of any principal repayment and ameortisation).

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investiment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated
Qains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where fair valve cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less
any impairment losses).
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Instruments Entered Into Before 1 April 2004

The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to
be accounied for as financial instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the
Statement of Accounts to the extent that provisions might be required or a
contingent liability note is needed under the policies set out in the sections on
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign
cumency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable
on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign curency are
outstanding at the year-end, they are reconveried at the spot exchange rate at 31
March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Fingncing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Government Granits and Coniributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in amrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there
is reasonable assurance that:

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
b. the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Siatement until conditions attaching to the groni or contribution have
been safisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are caried in the Balance Sheetl as creditors. When conditions are
satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line
[attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income (non-ring-fenced revenue granis and all copital grants) in  the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statemeni. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expendiiure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has
been applied, it is posied to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the
Capital Gronts Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account once they have been applied {o fund capital expenditure.
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inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the First in First Out (FIFO) costing
formula.

Long Term coniracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or
deficit on the provision of services with the value of works and services received
under the coniract during the financial year.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/for for
capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to
facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value,
based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between
knowtedgeable parties at arm's length. Invesiment properiies are not depreciated
but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the yeor-end. Gains
and losses on revaluation are posted 1o the Financing and Investmeni Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeni. The
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited io the Financing
and Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation
and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory amongements o have
an impact on the Disirict Fund Balance. The gains and losses are iherefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statemeni ond
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Alowances Scheme
(Northern Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allecated annual target
figures for the maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be
sent to londiil but there are no tradable allowances. It is not a ‘cap and trade’
scheme since landfill cllowances are not fradable. For this reason, landfill
dllowances are not recognised as assets on the Balonce Sheet.
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leoses where the terms of the lease transter
substantially all the risks and rewards incidenial to ownership of the property from
ihe lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use
an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment
of the amangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipmeni held under finance leases is recognised on the
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease ot its fair value measured ai the
lease’s inception [or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).
The asset recognised is maiched by o liability for the obligation 1o pay the lessor.
Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset.
Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisiiion of the interest in the property — applied to write down
the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being
charged over the lease term if this is shorfer than the asset's estimated useful life.

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation
and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision
is made from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with
statutory requirements. Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced
by a revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference beiween the two.
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Operaling Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Siatement, as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the
leosed propery, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis
over ihe life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g.,
there is a reni-free period at the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At
the commencement of the lease, the camrying amouni of the asset in the Balance
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as paort of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing
the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement alsc as part of the gain or loss
on disposal {i.e. netted off against the conying value of the asset at the fime of
disposal), maiched by a lease asset (long term debior) in the Balonce Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

0. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down
the lease asset {long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

b. finonce income {credited to the Financing and Invesiment income and
Expendiiure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement}.

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on
disposal is not permitied by statute to increase the General Fund Balonce and will
be required io be treated as o capital receipt. Where a premium has been
received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation
{o the lease asset is o be setiled by the payment of rentals in fuiure financial years,
this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid,
the element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property is used
to write down the lease asset (debior}. At this poini, the deferred capital receipts
are transferred to the Capital Receipis Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arangemenis for capital financing.
Amounts are therefore approprioted to the Capital Adjustment Account from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Staiement. Credits are made on a siraighi-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a premium
paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incumed in negotioting
and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and charged as an expense over the lease ierm on the same basis as rental
income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the camying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification and then camied at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs
{o sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of
any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Asseis Held for
Sale.

If assefs no longer meet the criterio to be clossified as Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-cument assets and valued at the lower of its canying
amouni before they were classified as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation,
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision
not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scropped are not
reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset
in the Balance Sheet [whether Properly, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for
Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts
from disposals {if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expendiiure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off
against the camying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation
gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounis received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipis and credited fo
the Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Siatement,
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The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of
fixed asseis is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.,

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged 1o those that benefit from
the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing
principle is used — the full cost of overheads and support services are shared
between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

a. Corporate and Democratic Core - cosis relating to the Council's siatus as a mulii-
functional, democratic organisation.

b. Non Distributed Costs ~ the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees
retiing eorly and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-
operational properties.

These two cost cotegories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for os separate
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement , as part of Net
Expenditure on Continuing Services.

Properly, Plant and Equipment

Asseis that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property,
Plani and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to
the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that
mointcins but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic
benefits or service potenlial (i.e., repairs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incured. The de minimus level is £5,000 capital expendiiure
below this limit is freated as a revenue item.



Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attibutable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it io be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the ifem and
restoring the site on which it is located.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value,
unless the acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council . In the latter
case, where the asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the
carmying amount of the asset given up by the Council,

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair
value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific
Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatemeni,
unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the
gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed cut of the
General Fund Balance io the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Assets are then camied in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement
bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and asseis under construction - depreciated
historical cost

- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist
nature of an asset, depreciated replocement cost is used as an estimate of fair
value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regulorly
to ensure that their canying amount is not materially different from their fair value at
the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously
charged to a service,
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The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008
only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have
been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impoired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are
estimated to be maierial, the recoverable omount of the asset is esfimated and,
where this is less ithan the camying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against thai balance (up
to the amount of the accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the camying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant service linefs) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Staiement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
up o the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have
been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

The same accounting treaiment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a
general fall in asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of
economic benefit specific to an asset as is in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the
sysiematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An
exceplion is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life [i.e., freehold
land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use
(i.e., assets under construciion).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

- vehicles, plant and equipment — a perceniage of the value of each class of
assets in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer

- infrastructure - straight-line allocation over_10-54 yedqrs,

A full year's deprecitaion is charged in the year of acquisition and none in the year
of disposal.
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xxii)

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment qsset has major components
whose cost is significant in relation o the total cost of the item, the components are
depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or
equipment assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference
between curent value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that
would have been chargeable bosed on their historical cost being transferred each
yvear from the Revaluation Reserve 1o the Capital Adjusiment Account.

Dredging

Dredging expenditure is categorised into capital dredging and major maintenance
dredging. Capital dredging is expenditure which includes creation of a new
harbour or maring, deepening or extension of a harbour or marina basin in order io
allow access to larger vessels and which will result in future economic benefiis for
the Council. This expenditure is capitalised and depreciated over the economic life
of the assef. Major maintenance dredging is expenditure incurred 1o restore a
chonnel or marina basin to its previous condition and depth. On an average the
Council incurs such expenditure every 8 vyears. Al the completion of magjor
mainienance dredging the channel or basin has an average service potential of 8
years. Major maintenance dredging is regarded as a separate component of the
asset and is capitalised and depreciated evenly over the 8 years subject fo the
findings of hydro-graphic reports carried out over the period.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assels are assels with historical, artistic, scientific, technological,
geophysical or environmental qudlities that are held and maintained principally for
their contribution to knowledge and culture,

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended 1o be preserved in trust for future
generations becaowse of their cultural, environmental or historic associations, they
would be held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the
maintenance of heritage.

At the end of this reporting period the authority held £1,162k in Heritage Assets,
These were mainly museum collections, paintings. bHooks, sculptures and other
artifacis. The value was determined by the services of an external valuer. Further
information is shown in Note 10e.
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XXiv)

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal
or constructive obligation that probably requires setilement by a transfer of
economic benefils or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be invelved in a court
case that could eventually result in the making of a setflement or the payment of
compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense o the appropriate service iine in the
Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council
becomes aware of the obligation, and measured ot the best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When paymenis are evenlually made, they are charged to the provision carried in
the Balance Sheet. Estimated seftlements are reviewed at the end of each
financial year - where it becomes less thon probable that o transfer of econemic
benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and crediied back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be
recovered from another party [e.9. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised
s income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the Council setiles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure
o be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in
that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement. The reserve is then
appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the occounting processes for non-current
assets, finoncial instruments and retirement benefits and do not represent usable
resources for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the
accounts.
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Xovii)

XXviil)

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges o revenue for non-current assets e.q. services, support services and irading
accounts are debited with the following amounis to record the cost of holding fixed
assets during the year:

a. depreciation atiributakle 10 the assels used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are
no accumulated gains in the Revaluotion Reserve against which the losses can be
written off

c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Cceuncil is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation
and impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual
provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing
requirement [equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined
by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance}. Depreciation, revaluation
and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by minimum
revenue provision [MRP] in the General Fund Balance. by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjusiment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incumed during the year that may be capitalised under statutory
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been
charged as expenditure o the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Siatement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing. a transfer in
the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital
Adjustment Accouni then reverses out the amounts charged, so that there is no
impact on the level of District Rates.

Value Added Tax

All expenditure ond income, imespective of whether it is revenue or capital in
nature, is shown net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irecoverable.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and
investment properties and some of ifs financial instruments such as equity
shareholdings [other financial instruments as applicable] at fair value at each
reporting daie. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurementi date, The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction fo sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair
value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into occount a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it 1o another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The authority uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is avdilable,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair
value is measured or disclosed in the authority's financial statemenis are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

* Level 1 - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for idenfical ossets or
liabilities

that the authority can access at the measuremeni date

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 — unobservable inpuls for the asset or liability.

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Praciice requires that the council discloses information relating to the
impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has
been issued but not yet adopted.

For 2016/17, the following accounting standards have been issued but not yet
adopted within the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.

a) Amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme transactions cosis.

b) Amendment to the reporting of investiment concentration [see paragraphs
6.5.5.1{m]) of the 2017/18 code).

It is not anidicipaied that these accounting changes will impact the council,

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

At 31 March 2017 Mid and East Antrim Borough Council has not identified any areas
that require such critical judgements,
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{i) Provisions

The Council has made a Provision of £35% for the settlement of claims for back pay
arising from the Equal Pay initiative, based on the number of claims received.

(i) Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on the number of complex
judgemenis relaing to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide
the council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

Third Party Investments

The Council administers investments for third parties outside the organisation, these
investments are not included in the accounts of Mid and East Antrim Borough
Council. {see Note 15 for further details).
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Mid and East Antrim Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2 Segmenial Reporling
a Segmental Reporting Analysis

The analysis of income and expendilure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Slatement
is specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. The segmenilal reporting noles within the financial stotemenis are
based on the summary first page of the General Fund - Service Income and Expendilure Analysis in the Depariment for
Communifies' Accounts Direction.

The General Fund - Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented 1o the Deportment for Communities is as

follows:
2014/ 2015/14
e Gross MR
Expendiure Gross Income Expendiiur cpenditure Gross incame
¢ i i §
Culiure and Heritage 3,578,087 {1.200,224) 2,377,861 3,589,526 {217,455) 3.371.871
Recreation and Sport 14,204,217 {2.303,634) 11,500,581 15,381,612 (2,646,639) 12,734,973
Tourism 3,458,987 (532.178) 2,926,809 2,704,832 {505,473) 2,199,359
Community Services 2,974,034 {600.396) 2,373,638 2,859,262 {613,838) 2,245,424

Leisure and Recreational Services 24,215,325 (4,636,438) 19,.578,88% 24535232 (3.983.,605) 20,551,627

Cemetery, Cremation & Morluary 1,929,222 {302.381) 1,626,841 1,509,173 {268.688) 1,240,485
Environmental Health 3,766,166 {1.630.534) 2,135,632 3.699.968 {1.515,.326) 2,184,642
Flood Defence ond Land Drainage - - - - - -
Public Conveniences 417,173 {6.180) 410,993 508,441 {6,005} 502,436
Licensing 1,848 {1.322) 526 139,560 67,728) 71,832
Other Cleaning 2,244,555 {2.994) 2,241,581 2.036,092 {13,459) 2,022,633
Waste Collection 7,324,543 {494,203) 6,830,340 7,241,138 {560,859) 6,680,279
Waste Disposal 4,893,725 {491,798) 4,401,927 5,602,285 {393,794) 5,208,489
Other Community Assets 11,149 - 11,149 12,097 - 12,097
Minor Works 985,480 {274.987) 710,493 350,414 {124,894) 225,520
Environmental Services 21,573,861 (3.204,399) 18,349,462 21,099.168 (2,950,755) 18,148,412
Community Planning 399,743 (27.075) 372,668 101.208 - 101,208
Economic Development 6,190,237 {1.086.435) 5,103,802 4,482,282 {2.834,341) 1.647.941
EU Rural Development 184,687 {177.414) 7.273 125,092 (125.092) -
Urban Regeneration and

Community Developmeni T 26,346 - 26,346 B.225 - 8,225
Planning Policy 2,595,497 (1.067.475) 1,528,022 2,157,362 {1.024,429) 1,132,933
Development Control - - - - - -
Building Control 1,278,282 {721.163) 557.119 1.078.939 {701,777} 377.162

Environmental initiatives - - L = - .

Planning and Development Services 10,474,792 (3,079,62) 7.595,230 7,953,108 (4.685,637) 3.267.449
Ofi-street Parking Services 1,785,758 {1,163.784) 621,974 789.434 {1,133,257} {343,823)

1,785,758 421,774

789,434

Highways and Transport Services
Democratic Representation and

(1,143,784) (1,133,257)  (343.823)

Management 2,285,057 {3.306} 2,281,751 1,639,248 {180,600} 1,458,648
Corporate Management 2,301,238 (62917} 2,238,321 2,530,773 {68,645]) 2,464,128
DRM and Corporate Management 4,584,295 {646,223) 4,520,072 4,170,021 (247,245} 3,922,776
Trading Services 412,614 {116,035) 296,579 406,653 {120,583) 286,070
Non Distribuled Costs {247} - {247} 100,454 - 100,454
Cenirol Services 1o the Public 1.159.364 {547,159) 612,205 1,412,332 [646,737) 765,595

Other Services 1,571,731 (663,194) 908,537 1,919,439 {767,320) 1,152,119

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 64,407,762 (12,813 598) 51,594,144  60.4556402 (13,767,821) 44,698,581



b Reconciliotion to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stolement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the onalysis of portfolic income and expenditure relate 1o the amounts

included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stotement

2018/17

A e ————— T e T

Net Cost of Services in Service Analysis . 51,594,164

llems excluded from Service Analysis:

Add amounts not reporied in Service Analysis but included in
Nei Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Siatement -

Remove amounts reporied in Service Analysis but not included
in Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure Statement

Cost of Services on Conlinuing Operations in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

TS TR

46,698,581

Statement 51,594,144

lems included In Net Operaling Expendiure excluded from

Service Anolysis:

Other Operating Expenditure 192,734
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 3.796.100

Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operations -
3,988,834

perafing Expendifure per

46,698,581

{8.399)

4,357,130

4,348,731

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 55,582,998

51,047,312
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3 Adjustment belween an Accounting Basis and Funding Basls under Regulations
Amounis included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement but required by siatute 1o be excluded when
a defermining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

2015714

Nola) St s ratiayes Fii T - r
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General fund Balance for the year

Impairments {losses & reversals) of non-curent
assels - -

Derecognition {other than disposal) of non-
cument assets 10 627 108.881

Revaluation increases/decreqses taken to

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 10 "340,753 52,402

Depreciation charged in the year on non-cumeni

assets 10 7.462,312 7.803.692 7.419.728 7.581,011
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital

under statute 11

Carrying omount of non current assels sold 10 224,084 36,701

Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, invesiment

property and intangible assels 7a.24d (31.350) 192,734 (45,100} {8.399)

Difference between finance cosls calculated on

an accounling basis and finance costs

colculoted in occordonce with statutory

requirements - -

Net charges made for refirement benefits in
accoerdance with 1AS 19 20 4,794,000 5,957,000

Direct revenue financing of Capital Expendilure 11.26 - -

Capital Grants and Donaoted Assets Receivable
and Applied in year

b {102,091) (641,395)
Capital Granis Receivable and Unapplied in year

9c - [13%.334)
Rates Claw-Back Reserve

Adjustments in relation to Shorl-term
compensaled absences 17 294,322 81,316

Adjustments in relation 1o Lessor Arangements .

Londfill Regulalions Reserve Adjustment

Pravisions Discount Rale Reserve Adjustment

Amounts not included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement but required
by statute {o be Included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
year

Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital
Invesiment 26

Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC
and retirernent benefits payoble direct to
pensioners 20 {3.227.000] (4.262,000)

8.342.880 3,591,139



Employers contributions payable to NILGOSC and the retirement benefits payable direct o pensioners figure of £3,227k
{2015/16 £4,262K) 0s shown in Note 3 excluded the following cosis:

a. Employers contributions payable to NICS- £252k {2015/14 £259k) in respect of planners,
b. Additional costs of early refirement pension paid to NILGOSC of £182k (2015/16 £302k]).
<. Additional costs of £44k {2015/16 £12k) re occumulaled absences.

d. Employers confributions payable in respect of Councillors - £118K {2015/16 £118K] as included within Note éd.



Net transters (to}/from statutory and other
earmarked reserves: SR

Renewoal and Repalrs Fund

Interest - -

Other 26 o [297,420) [297,420) {215, 2400 {215.240)
Capitol Recelpts Reserve

|Interest

Other 246 - -
Cther Funds and earmarked reserves

Interest . -

From Gther funds
Other ) 26 [485.000) {1.04%9.517)

{1.642,420) [3.153.982)

4 Cost of Services on Continving Operations

] General power of compelence

Prior to Local Governmeni Reform on 1st April 2015, expenditure for special purposes was limiled under Section 40 of the
Local Government Finance Act (Northern lreland) 2011, This section wos repealed by Schedule 10 of the Locol
Government Act [Northern reland) 2014.

Under Seclion 79 of the Loca! Government Act [Northern Ireland) 2014, Ihe Council has the power to do anything that
individuals generally may do, Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is
not limited to benefitling the orea or its residents nor is it limited by existing powers.

The Actual Expenditure under the power of competence amount to £nil during 2016/17 {Enil in 2015/16).

[+ Exiermnal Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and other services provided by the Councils external auditors,

2016/17 20015/14

External Audit Fees
Legacy External Audil Fees
Over accrual of audit fee 15/16

51,975 44,750

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the oppoinied auditor over and above
those described above (£nil 2015/14).
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LA Cpercling and rinonce Leases
Councit as Lesser

a Finance Leases (Council as lessor]

The Council has a number of finonce leases. However, the present value of the lease paymenis receivable under these
amangemenits are not material.
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b |Operaling Leases/(Councliaslesser)
The Council, in accordance with ils statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out property and equipment under
operaling leases for the following purposes:

- for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, 1ourism services and community cenires

- for economic development purposes o provide suitable offordable accommodation for small [ocal businesses

- any other purposes ;

Rential income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year amounts to
£173,257(2015/2016 £226,583). No coniingent rents were recognised.

The lease contracts are all non-cancellable and do not include an extension option. The lease terms are between 0 and
125 years. Future minimum lease income is set oul below:

Minimum lease rentals receivable:

No laoter thon 1 year

Loter than | yeor and no loter than 5 yeaors
Loter than 5 years




The assets leased by the Council 1o third parties are included in the following categories of Property, Plant and Equipment
wilh carrying values of:

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairments at 1 April

Additions in Year

Depreciation charge for the year

Impairments

Councii a5 Lessee

5;..m:-L oses [Counail os }

Some of the Council's vehicles are held under finance leases. The net camrying omount of the vehicles held under finance
leose arangements is £76.893 [2015/16 £109.774). The assels are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment which form
an integral part of property, plant and equipment {see Note 10c-leased ossels). The renfals paid for vehicles held under
finance leases totalléd £31,848 (2015/14 £77.368).

Furthermore, the Council holds a number of long term leases (10,000 years) for items of land. Only a peppercorn rent is
paid for this land and is therefore not included in the table below: g

Fulure minimum finance lease paymenis ol the end of each reperting period under review are as follows:
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lluldl 17
Finance leases payments
Less: finance chorg_es

Net present value | 2,782 | - | -] 2,782

2015/16
Finance leases payments
Less: finance chorges

Net present value | 28,045 | 2,782 | - 30,827

2014115
Finance leases payments
Less: finance chcrges

Net presenf value | - | - | ) - =

Current liabilities
Long term liabilities - 2,782 -
olal | 2,782 | 30,827 | -

The Council has ocquired its office pholocopiers and printers by entering into operafing leases with typical lives of 5 years,

The Council has acquired land (five localions) on payment of annual rents to Crown Estoles. The Council leases part of
the sec bed under operoting lease arangements in Comickfergus.

The expenditure charged io services in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Stalement during the yeaor in relation

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rentals
Less: Sublease payments receivable

Tolal 2 | 130,578 | 134,202 | 116,244 | 140,548

Mo sub-lease payments or contingent rent paymenis were made or received. No sublease income is expecied as all
assets held under operating lease agreements are used exclusuvely by the Council.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operafing leases in fulure years are set out below:



2015/1¢
Veh

_Pia

Minimum lease rentals payable;
No later than'| year

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Loter than 5 years

Tolal [ 1,882,562 | 180,823 | 1,885,072 | 168,027

Salaries and Wages
Employers NIC
Employers Superannuatiion

In addition. agency costs during the year amounted to £4,064,200 {2015/16 £3,424,363).

The Council's curent coniribufion rate to NILGOSC scheme is 20%. At the lost acturial valuation, dated 31 March 2013, the
Fund's assetls as a whole were sufficient to meel ?1% of the liabilities accrued up to that date.

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fulllime equivalent employees

<] Average Number of Employees 20186/17

Leisure and Recrealion Services
Environmental Services
Planning ond Development Services
Highways and Transport Service
Other

2014/17 2015/16

Full-fime numbers employed
Part-time numbers employed

[+ Senior Employees' Rernuneration 2018/17 2015/16

£30.001 1o £60.000
£60.001 to £70.000
£70.001 to £80.000
£80.001 to £90.0000

£90,001 to £100.000

£100.001 to £110,000
£110.001 to £120.000
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[.|Members' Allowances

Salaries

Basic allowance 1.

Mayor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowonce ] IEETT
Special Responsibilily Allowances \
|Dependents’ carers allowance

|[Employer costs

Mileage 4]
Conierences and Courses .

Travel & Subsisience Costs

Miscellanecus Costs |

Severance Payments

& Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

As aresult of Reform on 15t April 2015, slaft transfemed from Central Government to the Council are members of the
Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Department for Communities is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to daile
ocluarial valuation was caried out as at 31/03/2012. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated
to reflect cument conditions and rolled forward to the reporling date of the DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances
Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2017.

For 2016-17, employers' coniributions of £251,622 were payable to the NICS pension arangements at one of four rates in
the range 20.8% o 26.3% of pensionable pay, based on salary bands. The scheme's Acluary reviews employer
confributions every four years following a full scherne valuation. A new scheme funding valuation based on dota as ot
31/03/2012 was completed by the Acluary during 2016-17. This valuation was used to determine employer conlribution
rates for the iniroduction of a new career average éarning scheme from April 2015. The conlribution rates are set ioc meet
the cost of the benefits accruing during 2016-17 to be paid when the member refires, and not the benefils paid during this
period fo existing pensioners.

None of Mid ond East Antrim Borough Council employees have opted to open a parinership pension account.

During the year no employees refired early on ill-health grounds therefore there is no additional accrued pension liability
for 2016/17.



7 Other Operating Expenditure

a Surplus/Deficlt on Non-Current Assets (excl Investment Properties)

Carying amount of non-current
assets sold [excl investment

Properties} 224.084 36,701

192,734 [8.399)

b Other Operating Income/Expenditure

2016/17 2015/16
e e

Incom
Expenditure - -

Other Operating Expenditure 2016717 2015/14

{Surplus) / Deficit on Non Cumrent Assets 192,734 | [8.399) I
Other Operating [Income} / Expenditure - -

192,734 (8,399)

8 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

a Interest Payable ond Similar Charges

2016/17 2015/1%
Lease/hire purchose inlerest 3,803 9.487
Bank interest - 17.758
Government Loan Interest 3,118,519 3,226,215

Commercial Loan Interest - -
Other interest ({please specify} - -

3,122,322 3,253,460

b Interest and Investment Income

2016/17 2015/1%

Bank Interest 4é 2,234

Employee carloan interest 264 427

NIHE Loan interest receivable 86,416 89,296

investment income on fund

Balances

Capital Fund - -

Repairs & Renewals Ffund G S

Other Funds - -

Qther Investment income 81,471 79,488
168197 171,445

63



¢ Pensions Interest costs

L 2014/17

12015/14

{ F3

Net interest on the net defined

benefit liability (asset) 757,000 833.000
757.000 833.000

d Surplus/{Deficit) on frading operations

2018/17 2015/16

£

£

Income from froding_;

Expenditure

{5urplus)/Deficll for the year

e Income, Expendilure and changes in Falr Value of Invesiment Properties

Income/Expantiiure fom
Invattmenl Properies:

2016/17

£

2015/16

£

Income including renfal income:
Expenditure

De-recognition in relalion 1o
amounts writlen off

Net income from investment
properties

Surplus/deficit on sale of Investment
Properles

Proceeds from sale

Carnying amount of investment
properiies sold

{Surplus)/deficit on sole of
Invesiment! Properfies:

Choanpges in Fair Value of Invesiment
Properties

{25.509)

(24,107}

51,261

35.936

25,752

11.829

59.223

430,286

B4.975

442,115

Financing and investment Income
and Expendilure

.ﬁmm o nctore -G!i.itkmm- hn-

2014/17

L1

2015/16

£ £ £ £ £ £
Interest Poyable and Similar
Charges 3,122,322 - 3,122,322 3.253.460 - 3,253,450
Interesl and Investment Income - (168,197} 1168,197) - {171,445) [171,445)
Pensions inferest cost 757.000 - 757,000 833,000 - 833,00
Surplus/{Deficit) on trading
opergtions - - g . " .
Other invesiment income 51,261 {25,509) 25752 35,936 {24.107) 11,829
Changes in Fair Value of Investiment
Properties 59.223 - 59,223 430,286 430,286

3,989,806

(193.708)

3.796.100

4,552.482

{195.552)

4,357.130

&4



Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

a Revenve Grants

General

2018/1

b

I £,

2015/1&

(4.927.686)

Ciher

(4.811.029)

{4.927.685)

b Capital Grants and Donaled Assets - Applied

Government & Other Grants -
Conditions met ond applied in yeor

{|02..09| )

2015/14

(641,395)

Government & Other Grants -
Transier from receipts in advance

Donaled Assels - Condifions med

Donaled Assets - Transfer from
donaled assets creditor

¢ Capital Grants - Unapplied

{102,091}

{641,3%5)

2016417 2015/16

Government & Olher Grants -
Condifions met and not applied in
yeor

{139,334}

Other

d District Ratles

2016/17 2015/16

{139,334}

Current year {44,122,949) | (43,230,562}
Finalisation - previous year - -
Tronsitional Relief - -
Finalisation - other years & c

(44,122.94%9)  [|43,230.562)
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 2016/17 2015714
District Rate Income [44.122,949) | (43,230,562
Revenue Granls {4.811,029) | (4,927,684
Copital Grants and Coniributions {102.091) (780,729

(47,035,069) (48,938,977)
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Mid and East Anfrim Borough Councll

Noles o the Financial Stalements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
10 ¢ Intangible Assets

The Ceuncil does not own any Intangible Assels.

d Investiment Propedies

Additicns in Ihe yeor of £29.423 included amounis In relatian 1o enhancements of £29,623.

Investment Properties u 31/03:2017 31/03/2006
e e e : e - A

Rental Incoma from Invesimen! Aclivities 24,107
|Direc) Opercling expanses arising from Invesiment properties ] {51.261) | [35,934)
|Net galn/(loss} ] 125.752] | [11.829)

o Herlloge Asiefs

Hetilage Assels for Mid and East Anlim consis! of 1he following from each legocy Councll;

Ballymena Legacy Councll - Museum Collection £95,000, Clvic Regalio £65,000 and Mace volved o £2,000.

Comicklergus Legacy Councl - Painfing & Bocks £215,449, Sculplures £45.599 and Diher Artelocis £541,250.

Lamne Legocy Council - Art Collection £113,750, Ceremonial Dress £35,340 and Qther Heritoge cisels £28,910.

Ballymena and Larne Heriloge ossets were valued by a line arts consultant - Bollymena's museumn colleciion ot 31 March 2012 ond the
Clivic Regefio and Mace were valued al 31 March 2013 whils! Lerne’s Hetltage assels were valued af the 31 March 2014 end o
prolessional votuer coried oul a comprehensive valuglion of Camricklergus's assets in Jonuary 2013,

I Non-Opasralionol Assets

Non-Cperational Assets Cumrent Non Current

Cost ot Valuation

Balance as at | April 2014 - 321,947 321,547
Agdifions - 80.800 80,800
ACISIMEnts Delween cotljvoiue & deprecialion/impoement : . B B
Trgnstermed rom Nen-Cumen! Assels during yeor N - -
Revaluation increases/decreases taken 1o Surplus or Deficil on the Provision of ' o °
Sefvices

Darecognilion - Disposols g 5 -
Detecognilion - Cther N E -
Transfered to Properly. Plant 8 Equipment during year - - -
Balance as ai 31 March 2017 - 402,747 402,747
Impakment

Balance asal | April 2016 g N 5
Adjusiments batwean cosl/valuve & deprecialion/imparment N N -
Impaimeni losses/reversals laken 1 Surplus or Delicit on the Provision of Services

Derecagnilion - Dsposals B - - -
Derecognaron - Giher : B 5
iranstered to Property, Plant & Equipment during year . . .
|Iulﬂncc os o! 3! March El? g E B

Net Book Value
Bolance os of 31 Moreh 2007 - TA7 402,747
Balonce as ot 31 Match 2014 - 321.947 321,947




g long-Term Assets - Leased Assets

[9.214]

1317.642 |

Nel Book Value 109.774 12064 121,838

h Fait Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assels

Details of the Council's surplus assets and Inlormaiion about ihe lair value hierarchy os at A1 March 2017 ond 2016 are as follows:

2016117 Recurting lair value Qualed Prices Inactlve markets  Other significant signiffcont Fair value

as al

megsurements uslng for ldentical assets (Level 1) absotvable unabservable 315! March 2017

inputs (Level 2} inputs
(Leve! 3)

2015114 Recuning lalr value Quoted Prices In active maorkets  Other signlficent Significant Falr value

measurements using for Identical assets {Level 1) chservable unobservable st March 20014
inputs (tevel 2} inpuls

(Level 3)

os at

[ioiel | 3%.000 | = |

Transiers betwasn laveis of the fakr value hiszarchy

Thera were no transliers between Levels | and 2 during the year,

Highesi and best use of surplus assets

in eslimating the fair value of the Council's surplus assets, the highes! and bes! use of the assels Is ther cutent use.

Velualion Technigues

There has been no change in the voluation lechniques wied during 1he year for surplus assefs.

Veluvation Process for Surplus Assets

Land and Property services have valued Mid and East Anirim's surplus assels vsing 1he highest and besi use basis of valuation.

k)



I Fair Volue Hlerarchy for Invesiment Properties

Dretalls of Ine Council's Invesimen! Properties and infermation aboul the tar value hlerarchy os of 31 March 2017 ond 2016 are os foliows

2014617 Recurring !alr volve Quoted Prices In active markets | Other signiticant Signliicant falr volue os at
measyiements using tor Identical assets {Level 1) cbscrvablo unobservable 313t March 2017
inputs {Level2)  Inputs

{level 3
£

— e ———y

Retldential (Markst Renial} Propatiies Th88 - [
Office tnits
Commuarclal Unhs

Total | ) 895,968 | - - ] 894,948 |

2015714 Recurring falr value Quoted Prices In aclive markets | Cther signiticant Signlticant Falr value as at
measurements using foridentical gssets (Level 1) abservable unobservable 315t March 2014
inputs {level 2)  Inputs

Resldentlal (Market Rental) Properties
Office Unlts

Commesclal Unlts

{Tetel | 925,568 | - - 924,548 |

Tronslers between levels of the lolr value hisrorchy
There wese ro transfers batween Levels 1 and 2 during the year,

Valuation Techniques

There hos been no change in the valuation techniques vsed during the year lor Invesimen! Properiies

11 Capltal Expandiure and Copital Financing

NOTE: The tolal Coplial Expenditure Incurred In ihe year (and comparative year) k shown below - including the value of assels acquired
under linance leases and PE/PPP coniracts tegelher with the rescurces that have been used fo finance It. Where Caopiiol Expenditure &
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue os ossels are used, the expendilure results in an increase In the CFR. a measure ot
the Capilal Expenditure incuired historically by the Council Ihat hos yel to be financed. The CFR is analysed in Ihe second part of this
note,

Caoptital Expenditure

Opening Copltal Financing Requirament

|
Capital Investment

Property, Plan! and Equipment [[] 4.802.244 5.526,833
Investment Properties 10 29.623 251,508
Intanglible Assets 10 80,800 -
Revenius Expenditure Funded rom Capital undes Statule 3 3.316,550 2.0469,003
Investments

Sources of Finance

Coplial Receipis
Govemment Grants and Olher Contributions ? {3%8,531) 13,427,188)

Transters from Earmarked Reserves | [3.918,541) | 12,258.000) | )

Surma set aside rom Revenue:
Direct Revenue Conlripulions
Minimum Revenus Provision **

Closing Capltal Financing Requltement &6.936 207 £7.824 459

Expianation of Movemenls in Year 2018117

Incregse/{Decraase) in underlying need fo bomow
Assals acquired under finance leases
Assels acquired under PFI/PPP contracts

Inciease/{decrease) In Copital FiInancing Requitement - 890,252 - 3145247

|l Future Caplial Cemmitments

The Council has an ongoing programme of capital works and the estimated cosl of the schemes is as follows;

Ot ihe £27.9m copital commiiments disclosed below £4.2m (2015/14 £4.1m) of this relates to REFCUS.

Schemes ungdenway 7.743,522
Other Commitmenis | 13,257,007




| E I Inventoties 2016117

£
Garage 12,153 16,880
Bing 56.81% 41.145
Trading Outiets 91,402 93,412
Stationery 18,607 20,232
Other 79.442 43,970

The abave fligures are siated net of an obsolete provision of £13,4601 (201514 £12.413).

(E 3 Dcbtors
-1 Long Tetm Debtors

Govamment Deparimeants
Other Councils - -
Public corporations and frading funds - -
Bodies exiemcl Ic generol government - -
Empicyee cor lcons - -
Revenue Granls - -
Capilal Granis - - -
Inietes| Receivable - -
Capllal Deblors - =
Loans and advances . -
fingnce lease debilors - -
Trade debtors -
[NHE toans 1,380,438 1,459.598
Other - -
impairmen! of loons and recelvobles - -

olal leng Debto 80 8 ?

B o Debto 0 4] -]
Government Departments 35,158 1,293.838
Olher Councils B4, 414 72,542
Public corporaticns and iroding funds - -
Bodies external to general govemmen! 4464 952 300,823
NIHE loans 79,160 74,329
Employee ¢ar loans 1,749 4,747
Revenua Gronls 1,211,676 717.444
Copital Grants 139,415 124,462 |
Inlerest Recelvable 39,158 2,105
Capital Deblors 6.500 -
Value Added Tax 1,396,958 1,339,735
Prepaymants 132,147 185.595
Finonce leose debtors - g
Ofner 13,883 217,637
Trade recelvables 518,421 329024
Imparment loss - Trade receivables (74,031} (4%.080)
Total Shorl-Term Debtors 4051582 4,631,241

Total Debtors 5432020 4 090 B37



L [rve stments
Il long Term [nvesiments

The Council does nol hold any long term investments.

[-] Short-Term Investments 2014417 2015716
£ £

Investments - general -
Investments - Deposits for langfit 1,670,692 2066923
Invesiments - copital lund - -
Investments - other 9,758,252 9,900,216
Total Short-term Investments. 11,428 744 11967 83%
a do 0 0
Money market deposits R i e B | Pa s =
Othet depasils | | sl I
Tolal Long Term and Short-term fnvesimenls 11,428 .944 11.947.839

The Council clso cdmirkiers £294, 016 [2015/14 £288,805) of third penly Invesimenis, Ihese volues are notincluded In
the occounis of Mid ond East Anirim Borough Councll,

The Legacy Larna Borough Councl received ¢ donation from Fort Jemes Paper Mill fo be used for the benefit of the
pecple of Lorme, of 31 March 2017 the balance on depcsit was £2,198 (2015716 £2,198]. ¥ clso had Invesimenis in the
Norihern reland Ceniral investment Fund for Chorities of £34,968 {2015/16 £30.428), and a Chertles account of
£11,300 (2015716 £9.401), The Legacy Camickiergus Borovgh Council had an investment Legg Trust Fund with ¢
balance of £246,053 al 31 March 2017 {2015/16 £245,009].

Third parly invesiments glso Inciude the Lome Coal Fund of £356 [2015/16 £356) and councl bank depasits kor various
community groups of £1,141 [2015/16 £1,213}.

Borrowings
.1 Short Term Borrowlng

Loans re-payabie wilhin one year
Finonce Lease Principal

Total Short Term Bonowing 3 646,874 3417913

+ long Term Bomewlng 2014577 2015/16
£
Betwaen | and 2 yeors 3.7 66,385
Between 2 and 5 yeats 9,085,943
Between & and 10 yeors 15,685.878 15,375,225
In more than 10 yeors 29.084.008 33.221.112
Tolal Borowing 61,289 088 44 504,205

Injerest rales on Govemment loans range between 1.45% and 11.375%

ik}



Creditors
-} Short Term Credltors 2016017 2015016 2014115

£ £ £
Gavemnment Deportments . 241,190 223,778 -
Ciher Counclls 96,805 57,404
Public corporations and Irading funds = = -
Bodies externci 1o general goveinment 134,592 48,135 -
Raotes clowback - - -
VAT 185 14,748 0
Remuneraticn due to employees 400,842 194,740 -
Accumulaied Absences 861,305 566,983 485,647
Receipts in advonce 170,155 - -
Trade creditors 3.878.08l 3,167,724 -
Other 605,130 858,344 =

Tolel Short ferm Crecitors

-] Ltong Term Creditors
Olher creddors [aling due after rnere: than one year

Govemment Departments
Ciher Councils™

Public corporations and Irading funds
Bodies exiemal fo general government 3 . B B
Roies ciowback 5 B
[Remuneration due to employees i B B B
ACcumulaled Absences - - B
Receipis In odvance - . =
Trade creditors B 5 B
Other B B N

aial Crec@on

¢ Payment of involces
The Council hos a torget of paying supplier involces within 30 calendar days. +

During the year the Councll recelved 25.413 involces tolalling £42,373,210 [2015/14 25,207 invoices tolaling
£42,140,885).

The number of dispuled Inveices during Ihe yeor was 58,

The Counci paid:;

22,563 Involces wilhin the 30 day target;

12.227 Invoices wilhin ihe 10 day farget: and
3,050 invoices ouwiside of the 30 day target

Increase in Interest cost

Bclance as ot 1 Apiil provislon Unused amounts  ond/or discount Ealance as at 31
2016 during yeor Uiksed duting year reversed rale changes March 2037
£ £ £ £ £ £

Landfill ciosure 2.066.923 - {132,828 |427.578) 1,506,517
Insyrance 291,500 201.333 [78.885) 136.930) - 377.018
Single Stafus 352,838 14.974 - {#.0001 = 158,812
Oter 100.000 250.000 100,000} ] . - - 250.000
Total 2811.28 A58 307 {311,713) (473.508} 2.4%2 347
[Current Provisions | 737,250 | 305.241 | {248,605 | 1268,115] | - 525,771 |
|Long Term Provisions | 2074011 | 161,068 | {43.108) | [205.393 | - | 1.966.576 |
Total 2811,281 454,307 {311,713) [473.508} - 2492 347
[ rotive Year
o o ) d q o dd g o] d o] ong a Q1&
Landfill closure 2.211.449 32,029 {176,555 C- - 2,065,523
Insurance 198,825 239,973 {44,528 (100,770) - 291,500
Singie Slalus 382,976 8.562 {38,700 - - 352838
Olher 26862 100.000 126.862) - - 100.000
2,820,112 (285 445) (100770} 2811241
|Cument Provisions | 675715 |  339.261 | {277.726) | - 1 = 1 737.250
|Ltong Term Provisions | 2144397 | 41,303 | 110.219] | 1100.770] | - | 2074011 |
fotal 2820132 380564 (288 445) (100.770} - 2.811.261

L]



Landiill closure

The londfill closure provision relales 1o the subsequent closure costs for the closed Ballymaocvea kandfil site. A full revalyation was
camed out during the year ended 31 March 2014 by RPS Consulling Engineers and the valualion has been discounted in line with rea
discount rates ot 31 march 2017 Le discoun! rates are based on Ihe National Loans fund bomowing rofes.

Insuronce

The Insurance provision relates to the Councl's estimated sell Insurance liability re employers and pubiic liability cloims lodged agalns!
tha Council, i would be expected thal the maicdly cf this expenditure wil be incurred within the next three to live years.

Sinple Status

This provisian relates to the eslimated cost of Counclis obligalions 1o Iis employees under the Nctional Agreemeni on Pay and Conditions
of Service [The Green Book'] which the Councll expecis 1o finalse within Ihe coming year. The mojority of these abligations under the
Green 8ook have been determined and ogreed. .

Other

This provisien refales 1o the estimaled cost of ajudicial review In respect of planning.

financlal Inskuments

The Council has no material exposure 1o any of the risk fypes ldenlilied below in lis dealings with financial Instrumenis,

Cradit Risk

Credil risk arises from deposits with benks ond financial Institutions. as well as credit exposures lo the Councll's customers. Customers are
assessed, taking inle account their financial posltion, past experience and other lactors, wilh Individual credit limils being set in
occordance wilh internal ratings In occordance with paramelers set by the Council. The provisien for bad and doubiiul debls ratiects
the Council's assessmeni of the risk of non-payment by frade debiors and, as such, there is no further additional estimaled exposwre to
defaull and inakiity lo collect.

Trode debtors, Incluslve of VAT, can be analysed by age os follows:

Less than Ihrea months
Threa 10 six months
Sk months lo one yeor

More than one yeor }

Thera b no hislorical experience of default in relalion to deposils with banks and other finaonciol inslitutions, Therefore there s no
esimaled exposwe fo risk of daioult

Uiquidity Risk

As the Councl has ready access K bomowings iom the Deportment of Finance's Consolidated Fund, there i no significant risk thot it wilk
be unable lo raise finance o meet it commiiments under Fingnclal Instruments. The malurdty analysis of financial Babilites ks included in
notes 16 te 8. Alllrade and other payables are due for payment within one year.

Marked Risk

Inferest mie sk

The Council 5 exposed fo risk In tetms of ifs exposwe to interest rale movements on ifs invesiments. The Council is in receipt of loans from
the Department of Finance, howaver these loans are at lixed concessionary Interest mates that differ from the prevailing market rates.

Forelgn Exchange Rlsk

The Council has ne financio! assets o lablilies denominated in foreign curencies and thus has no maletial exposure 16 loss ansing from
movemenis in exchange rates.

Falr Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans
The Councll iin receipt of loans from the Deporimant of Finance ond Personnel ot concessionary inlerest rates thal ditter from the
prevaiing marke! rates. The fair value of thesa loans is £85.086,334. broken down as faliows:

| £
Government Logns
Morke) Loans
Total 85,086.334

m”
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Reflremeant Benelits

a Porficlpaficn in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officars’ Pension Fund.

As parl of Ihe terms and condilicns of employment of lis olicens and other employess, the Council oliers reframent benelits. Although
ihese benelils will not actually be payable uniil employees relre, the Council has @ commilment to make the poymenis 1hal need to be
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future enfilement.

The Council parlicipates in the Nerhetn relond Local Governmen! OHicers’ Pension Fund odministered by 1he Northem Irelond Locol
Govemmeni Officers' Superannualion Commitee, This 5 o tunded scheme, meaning that the Councll and employees pay confribulions
into @ fund, calculoied a! o lavel intended to balance the pansicn’s liabililies with invesimen! ossets.

B Trensoctions relating to refirement banefits - Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalemeni Chorges:

ine Councll racognises the cost of refiremenl benelils in the Cost of Services on Conlinuing QOperglions when Ihey ore eamed by

employees, ralher ihgn when the benelils are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge ihe Council ls required to make against district rales is bosed on Ihe cash payable In Ihe yeor, and the real cost of
retirement benefits Is reversed out in the odjusiments between accounling basis & funding bosis under regulations line, In the Movement

on Reserves Sialement.

the following transaciiens hove been mode In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slalement and the adjustmerits between
accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Salemeni during the yeorn

Note 2016/17 2015116
= £
Nel cosl of services:
Current service cost 4,037,000 4.,083.000
Past service cost/[galn) - 1,041,000
Gains and losses on sefllsmenis or curtallments
Net operaling expanditure:
et Interes! on nel delined banefit Liobiity {assel) 757.000 833,000
Tatal Post-emplay I Benefits charged fo the Surpius or Deflcit on the Provisien
of Services 4,794,000 5,957,000
Movemen! In Resarves Slalement:
raevensal of net charges mode for relremen! benefits in accordonce with I1AS 19
and the Coda [4,794,000} 15.957.0001
Aclual amouni charged agains! the general fund balance for pensions in the
year:
|Employers' contribulions payable to scheme 3,227,000 4,262,000
Net adjustment fo the General Fund (1.567 00O} {1.695 000)

The sarvica cost igures include an allowance for agminkirakion expeanses of 1.6%.

Remeasurements recogrised in Other Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

Liability goins/{losses) due lo change In osumplions *

2016417
£
130.551.000}

2015116
£
5,462,000

Lability experence gains/ilosses) arising in 1he year

7.373.000

943,000

Actuanal gains/{lossest on plan assais

Other - (i opplicable)

*  includes financiol assumplions and demographic assumptions.

€ Assets and llabliitles In relafion fo retirement benefits
Reconclilation of present value of the scheme llabilifles:

Tolal galnsf({lesses) recognised In Clher Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

14,323,000

(6 855 000)

2016117

£

5 988 000

2015/1&
£

Balance as af 1 April 134,242,000 135,958,000 |
Cuman! service cos! 4,037,000 4,083.000
injeres) cos! 4,583,000 4,308,000
Conlriputions by members 1.018.000 1.035.000
Remaasuremant (Qains) and lossas:
Actuarial gains/iosses arising rom changes in financial assumplions 30,551,000 15,462,000}
Actugrial goins/fiosses arsing rom demographic changes {976.000) -
Actugrial gains/losses arising on ligbilities from experience (6,397,000 {943,000}
Other (it opplicable) B -
Pasl service costs/[gains) - 1.041.000
Losses/[Qains) on curlaiments - -
Labililies exinguithed on settiemeants - -
Estimaied unfunded benelils paid {53.0001 {53.000}
Esiimoted benefile poid 13,235,000} 13,725.000)
Balance as al 31 March 145.070.000 135 242 000



Reconclilalion of present value of the scheme assets: Note 2006117 2015114

£ £
Baionce as at | Apxil 112,380,000 107.863.000
intetest Income 3,826,000 3.475.000 |
Centributions by members 0 1,018,000 1,035,000
Contnbutions by employer 3,174,000 4,209,000
Contributions in respec! of unfunded benefits 53.000 33,000
[Remeasurement gain/tiosst 14,323,000 1417.000)
Assels distibyted on setiemenis = o
Unfunded benefils paid 153.000) (53.000)
1Benel'ils paid 1 £3,935.000) 13,725,000}
Balance as at 3t March 130 784,000 112,380,000

The actual teluth on scheme astels in the yeor was a gain/loss of £18,14%,000 {2015/14 gain of £3.058,000).

Equily invesiments oy D
Bonds :

The above asset values are at bid volue as required by [AS 19,

Delaqlls of estimales made by the Fund Manager when assessing the lar volues of plan assets

The emounts included In the fak volue of plan assels lor property occupled by the Counch was £0,

The Counclil's shore of the Net Pension Liabliity {included in the Balance Sheet}):

31/0372016
-z £

Far Valuae of Employer Assels 130786000 ) . 112,380,000
Prasen! value ol lunded delined benefit obligation {1454,156.000) [135.421,000)
Pansion cssel/[lidbilitw of Funded Scheme 133,370,000} {23,041,000)
Presen| Volue of unfunded defined benefit cbiigation X

Oiher movementin ihe liabllily [assel] {il applicoble) - o
|Net assel/(liobllity) arlsing kom the defined benelli obiigab [34;284.000! {23.842.000)
Amoun In the Balonce sheel:

Liabillies T
At

A ab 4 284 Q00 852,000

d Scheme history

Analysis of scheme assets and liabilities f 31/03/2015

£
Fair Value of Assals in pension schems 130,786,000 -112,350.000
Fresent Vaive of Defined Benefil Obligation {145.070,000} {136,242,000)
Surplusi{defic) in the Scheme (34 284 000) (23 852 000)

Amount recegnised in Cther Comprehentive Income ang
Expenditure 31/03/2017 31,/03/2014
£ £

Actuarial gains/ilosses) 123,178,000} 6,405,000
|Excected Retum on Pian Assets 14320000 1.

Intrease/{decrease) in imecoveroble surplus from membership fall ond other I

lacions : £
|Remoasuremanls recognised in Ciher Comprehensive Income and Expenditve {8.855.000} 5,988,000
Cumulative ocluasial goins and losses {2.847.000} 5.988.000

|History of experlence gains and losses:

[Experience gains and {losses) on ossels
|Expeﬂence gains and {losses] on liabililies

The ligbililies show the undertying commitments tha! Ihe authority has In the long run {o pay relrement benefits. The tolal liability of
£34,284.000 has g substanlial impact en the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheel.



However, stalutory amengemenis [or funding the deficil meaon that the fingncial position of the Councll remains healthy, The delicll on
the Neorihern relend Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund will be made good by increcsed contibutions over Iha remalning working
life of employees, ossessed by the sgheme aclvary,

Analysls of projecied amount to be chaorged to the Comprehensive Income ond Expendlivre Statement for the year o 31 March 2017

Projecled curent ¢osl

Net inletes! on the net defined beneflit Bability (assel}
Past service cost

Gains end losses on selllemenls or curlgilments N

The 1otal contributions expected 1o be made to Ihe Nodhem Ireland Local Gevernmenl Oflicers' Pension Fund by Ihe council in the year
1o 31 March 2018 ts £6,3%9,000. .

History ol experlence galns ond losses
The octucrial painsflosses identifiad as movements on ha Pansions Reserve 2016/17 can be analysed Inio the following calegories,
measured ot a percentoge of assels or licbillies al 31 Morch 2017,

31/03:2017 31/03/2018

44

Experiance (goins and [losses) on Assats A
Experience gains ond (losses) on Loblilies | | ] -3.88%( -0.69% |

« Basls for eslimating assets and labililies

Liablilies have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projecied unil methad, an estimale of ihe pensions thal will be payable in
the tulure years dependent on gssumptions aboul mortallly rates, solary levels, etc. The Councll's Fund ligbiiliies have been assessed by
Acn Hewill Limiled. an Independent fim of actuories, estimates for ihe Councll Funa being based on dala pertaining to the latest ful
volualion of the schame os ol 3! Morch 2013,

Leng-term cigiecied e of relurn on ossaelsin the schieme:

Equity invesiments
|Bonds

Property
Cash
Other

Modol?!v assumptions:
|Longevity at 65 current pensioners: Years Years
tren

womean

Itongevity af 65 for luture pensioners:
Men
Women

Salary Increase Rale

Expected Return on Assels
Discount Rale

Pension occounts revalyation rate

Eﬂ-ﬁﬂoﬂﬁ'ensﬁoa increase Rate

Tak#-up of option lo convert annual pension Into refirement lump sum:
Service to Apd| 2009
Service post Apl 2009

Penslon Assumptions Sensitivity Analysls
The pension figures disclosed in these inancial stfalements are sensitive Io the assumptions used.

The opproximate impact of changlng key assumplions on Ihe present value of the funded delined banefit obligotion as al 31 March
2017 &s sed out below.

In eoch case, only the assumption noled below ts aliered: all @lher assumplions remain the same and are summartsed i the disciowrn
above.



]

Funded Pension Scheme Benefily

Dlscount Rale Atsumplon

Adijustment lo discounl rate 1%, > - ]
Presen| voive of 1he tolal obligation g :
% change in the present value of the tolal ebligation 3
|Projecied service cost

Approximate % chonge In projected service cos! o

(Rale ol G i In Salarl

Adiustment 1o salay Increase rate 1 =0.1
|Presen! valve ol 1he tolal obligalion ]
% change in the present volue of the tolal obligation 1
|Profecied service cost
Approximate % chonge in projected service cos!

Rote of Increase to Penslons In Paymeni ond Delenad Penslon Assumghon

Adustment to pension increase rote -

Present voive of the lotot obtligolion

% change In the presen! volue of 1he tolal obligation
Prijected service cost

|Approximate % chenge in projected service cost

|Past Refirement Modality Assumphion
|

Adusiment fo mortality ape rating assumption®

Present value of the 1olal ohligation

% change in the present volue of Ihe fotal ebligation
jected service cost

Approximale & change in projected service cost

* A rating of +1 year meons Ihat members ore assumed to foliow Ihe monality patiem of the bose lable above for an indivicual that is 1
year pider then thal.

I' Mojor categorles of plan assets as percentoge of iolal plan csseis

Equily Invesimenis
Government Bonds
—orporaie Boncs
Property

Cash

Other

ﬁ'olcl

@ Northarn lreland Civil Service Pension Anangements
The Northern Ireland Clivil Service Pension arangements are unfunded multkempioyer defined benefit schemes bul the Councll is ungbla
ta identity Its share of 1he undertying assels and liabifilies. The mosi up lo date aciuvarial valuation wos comied out as at 31/03/2012. This

valuation ls Ihen raviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updaled 1o reflect cument conditions and rolled lornward jo Ihe reporting dale of
the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounis as i 31 March 2017.

Dangled Assets Account

the Councl does nol hold any Donated Assets. .

Copllal Grants Received In Advance

Opening balance

Add: new capital granis received in advance [condition of use not met)
Less: amounts released to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statemen!

Analysis of CopHol Granls R ipts in Advance Bol

The balance of Capllal Grants Receipls in Advance represents grants received that have yet 1o be recognied asincome, as they have
condilions atlached 1o them, which wil require the gront lo be repaid, it conditions are not met. The balonces ol the year end are as
folicrws:

Capial Granls Becelpts in Acvance
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Conlingencles

The Norhern Irelond Environment Agency reviews lhe adequacy of the Council's financiat provision lor landlil copping ond aliercore
costs in ine with it's poper “Fincnciol Provision for Weste Managemen! aclivilies in NI. As o consegquence the current landfill closure
provision in the finoncial stalements may change.

The Arc 21 Joint Commitiee has with the approvel of thek Parlicipant Counclls, entered into o Conlingent Licbility undericking with the
bidding consortium in the procurement for the Residual Waste Treatmen! Projec! and Mid and East Antim Berough Council hes agreed
Its share of the contingen! liablity. Payments mode I any In cccordance with Ihis underfaking wil be funded by the Participant Counclls.
Mo lurther inlormation on this agreement can be disclosed due to the commercial sensifivity of 1he procutemnent process

Guareniead Minimum Pension {GMP) is a pertion of pension 1hal was occrued by individuols who were contracted oul of Stale Fension
prior 10 & Apxil 1997, At present Ihere is an ineguality of benelits between male and lemgle membens who have GMP, No explicit
allowence has been mada lor the GMP equalisation in 1his years figures. Unlillt is known how GMP equalisalicn will be camied oul, the
Impect for it on the abilities is unceriain, )

Cue o the uncericinly cround the above events, Council have not made a provision lor 1hesa costs in the current financial siclements,
but have included Ihem. as contingen! labiities for the future.

&



Mid end East Anktim Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

24 Other cash flow disclosures
a Analysis of Adjustments 1o Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficlt on the provision of services

for noncash movements 201617 2015/16
£ £
Depreciation 10 7,462,312 7419728
Impairment & downward revaluations {& non-sale 10 281,530 {377,8%0)
Amortisation [included with depreciation above) - -
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock i 22,584) [
{Increase)/Decrease in Debtors . { 1
Increase/(decrease) in impairment provision for bad debts 249 1
Increase/{Decrease] in Creditors X :
Increase/(Decrease) in Interest Creditors ,
Payments fo NILGOSC 20 1,567,000 1,695,000
Carrying amount of nen-current assets sold 10 224,084 36,701
AIC/WIP written off 1o Net Cost of Services 10 4627 108,881
Conlributions to Other Reserves/Provisions ] 318, Bl

Movement in value of investmeni properies-included |
above in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions)

Amovunts posted 1o CIES from Donaled Assets Account 21 - -

Purchase of shori-ierm [not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint veniures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from short-term [not considered 1o be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investrenis in associates, joint veniures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investiment property and
lintangible assets {31,350} {45,100)
Caopital grants included in "Taxalion & non-specific grant
income” 1




b Cash and Cash Equivalents

Far the purposes of the cash flow stalement, cash and cosh equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and
short term deposits and investments {considered 1b be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdrofis. Cash
and cash equivalents at the end of the reporing period as shown in fhe statement of cash flows can be reconciled

1o the relaled |Iems in the Balonce Sheet os follows:

[4 Cash Flow Statement: Operaling Activities
The cash flows from operaling activilies include:

(56.517)

Interest received

Interest paid

2016117

2016/17 2015/16 2014/15
£ £ £
[Cash and Bank bolances 70.478 3,366,498 2,503,754
Short Term Deposils (considered 1o be Cash
Equivalents) = - -
Short Term investments (considered to be Cash %
Equivalents) | X ;:
Bank Overdrafi {126,995) {2,928} -
3,363,572 2,503,754

2015/16

Purchase of PPAE. invesiment property and inlangible assets

Purchase of Shorl Term Invesiments {not considered to be
cash equivalents)

Purchase of Long Term Investments

Other Payments for Invesling Activities

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment properly and
intangible assels

Proceeds from Short Term Invesiments {not considered 1o be
cash equivalents)

Proceeds from Long Termn Invesimenis

Capital Granis and Contributions Received

Otlher Receipts from Investing Actlivities

-] Cash Hows from Financing Activities

Cash Receipts from Short ond Long Term Borrowing

Other Receipts from Financing Activities

Cash payments for the reduction of the oulstanding liability
relaling to a finonce lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI
contracts

Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing

Other poymenls for Finnncing Aclivities

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities

(31.350)

2016/17

(3.617,920)

{45,100)

2015/14

(2.414,652)
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Usable Reserves

a Capltal Receipts Reserve

These are copital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of asseis which have not yet been used 1o
finance copital expendiiure.

The Capilol Receipls Reserve is credited wilh the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipls. These are originally crediled to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement
as part of the gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Siatemenl 1o the Capilal Receipis
Reserve. The reserve is written down when resocurces are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside to
reduce an authorily's capital financing requirement {or used for other purposes permitied by statute).

Capital Recelpls Reserve Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April 41,700 257,940

Movement

Transfers between siafutory.& other reserves & the General

Fund . .

Disposal of Non Cumrent Asseis/ Capiial Sales 3.10, 24 31,350 45,100

Copitol Receipts used o finance capital expendiiure 3,11 (73.050) {261,340}

Difference between finance and other casis and income

calculaled on an accounling basis and finance cosls

calculated in accordance wilh stalutory requirements R -

Olher Movements - -

Al 31 March - 41,700

b Capital Grants Unapplied account

Where a capital grant or contribution {or part thereof} has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expendilure Statement, bul the expendilure io be financed from that gront or coniribution has not
been incurred at ihe Balance Sheet date, the grant or coniribution shall be fransierred to the Capital Granis
Unapplied Account (within the usable reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting ils stalus as o capital
resource available to finance expenditure. This fransfer is reporied in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

When, at a fulure date, the expenditure 1o be financed from the grant or coniribution is incurred, the grant or
contibution (or pard thereof} shall be fransfered from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital
Adjusiment Account, reflecling the application of capital resources lo finance expenditure. This fransfer is also
reporied in the Movement in Reserves Siatement or in the noles 1o the accounts.

Cuapital Grants Unapplied account Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April 296,440 2,942,899

Movement

Unapplied Capital Granis received in year - 139,334

Unopplied Capital Granis transferred to CAA in yeor {296,440) {2,785,793)

At 31 March - 296,440



¢ Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI} 1972, however this section of the act
waos repealed under the Local Governmeni Finance Act (Nothem Irelond) 2011,

QpIg O ole ) { i 01&
3 . £
At 1 April 8,310,000 8,505,000
Transfers between statutory & ofher reserves & the General
Fund 840,000 1,889,225
Transfers between Capilal Fund & CAA lo finance Capital = s | (N
Expenditure . 11 | (3918,561) |  [2.084,225)
" 137 o U.000
. £
Fund for Legacy Ballymena Borough Council Capital Projects EEERE3)552:014)
Fund for Mid and East Anlim Borough Council Capifal Projecls I 1,699,225
General IREDT =
Total 5,251,439

d Renewal and Repalrs Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act [NI) 1972, however this section of the act
was repealed under the Local Government Finance Act {(Notherm Ireland) 2011,

£ £
At 1 April 2,428,197 2,386,732
Transters between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund 257,420 215,240
Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA {o finance
Capital Expenditure 1 (173.775)

; £

General S 2.7 25.6]"
Total d 2,725,617

e Other Balances & Reserves

Cther Balg s & Kese e ole §) D 0 0164

£ £
At 1 April 2,257,964 1,208,447
Transfers between statulory & other reserves & the General

Fund 485,000 1,049.517

Transfers between Copital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance caopital expenditure 11

This reserve is used to equalise {(smooth) the cost of legal fees and olher miscellaneous costs.
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f General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the vear of providing services in accordance with generally accepied
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from Disirict Rotes. Councils raise rales o cover
expendifure in accordance with regulations; this may be ditferent from the accounting cost. The taxation position is

shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

0 014

£ £

Al 1 April 3817112 3,488,290
Applied Capiial Grants 3,22, 24 (102,091} 641,395
Unapplied Capilal Granis received in year 3 - 139,334
Direci Revenue Financing 3 n {850,314) (1,470,874
Depreciglion and Impairment adjustment 3 7.803.692 7.581,011
Stalutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 3 {3.879.011) {3.575,187)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under stalute

3N 3,316,550 2,069,003
Surplus/(Deficit] on the Provision of Services CIES {6.546,929) (2.108.335}
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the
General Fund (1,642,420) (3.153,982)
Net movements on Pension Reserve 3,20 1,567,000 1,495,000
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 310 192,734 (8,399)
Difference between finonce and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance cosis
calculated in occordance with siatulory requirements 294,322 81.314
Other Movements = -
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24 Unusable Reserves
a Capiial Adjustment Account

The Capilal Adjustmeni Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different amangements for
accounling for the consumption of non-curtent assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancerment of
those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisifion, construction or enhancement as depreciafion, impairment
losses and amaoriisalions are charged lo the Comprehensive income ond Expendiiure Stolement, with reconciling
postings from the Revalualion Reserve fo conver fair value figures 1o on historic cost basis.

The Accouni conlains accumulated gains and losses on Invesiment Froperies and goins recognised on donaled
assefs that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Froperty, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008,
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.



apnal Ad < L O

£

b Financial Instruments Adjustiment Account

The Council has no fransactions that would require use of this account.

£

Al 1 April 71,426,609 68,943,939
Applied Capital Granis 3,22 24 102,091 641,395
Unapplied Capilal Grants fransferred to CAA in year 296,440 2,785,793
Direct Revenue Financing 311 850,314 1,470,874
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 10 (7.803,692) {7.581,011})
Stalutory Provision for financing Capital Investiment 3 3.872.011 3,575,187 |
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capilal under siatute 3, {3.316,550) {2.069,003)
Disposal of Fixed Assels/ Capital Sales 31 {224,084} (36,701)
Capital Receipts used fo finance capital expenditure 3.1 73,050 261,340
Other Movements . 1,5740821 = 1176794
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &

CAA 1o finance capital expenditure 11 3,918,561 2,258,000

0 8 0



c Revaluvation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contalns the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assels. The reserve is reduced when assels with accumulated goins are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulaled since 1 April 2008, the dale the reserve was creoied.
Accumulated gains arising before that dale are consclidaled inlo the balance on the Capital Adjusimeni Account.

The purpose of this account is 1o build up a balance based on the revaluation {upwards or downwards) of
individual assels. All such revaluations {excluding impairment losses that have been debited 1o Surplus/{Delicit} on
the Provision of Services) are mimored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expendilure. 1t is o fundamenial
principle of this account thal it never becomes negalive. If an asset was held at cument value when derecognised,
the balance held on the Revalualion Reserve is written off to the Capilal Adjustment Account.

£ £

Al 1 Apiil 45,368,349 36,106,265
Revaluation & Impairment 10 21,572,902 10,438,178
Movements from associates & joint veniures - -
Other Movemenis ) ~ 1,574,082) (V.176,794)
At 31 March 65,367,167 45,348,349
d Available for Sole Financial Instruments Reserve
The Council has no fransactions that would require use of this account.
e Pension Reserve
e ote 03/20 03/2014
£ £
At 1 April {23,862,000) {28,155,000)
Nel Movemenis on Pension Reserve 3,20 (1,567,000) {1.695,000)
Revaluation & Impairment 20 (8.855,000) 5,988,000
Al 31 Maich (34,284,000) {23,842,000)




{ Deferred Capital Recelpts Account
The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account.

g Accumvulated Absences Account
The Accumulaled Absences Account absorbs the differences thal would otherwise arise on the General Fund
balance from gccriing for compensaled absences earned but not igken in the year e.g. stalf annual leave

entitlement caried forward ai the end of the financial year. Statutory arangements are expecied to require thal
the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers 1o or from this Accumulated Absences Account

edBRiencec i res ote 03/20 03/2014

£ £
Al | April - {566,983) {485.667)
Ditterence beiween finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (294,322} (81.316)
At 31 March {861,305) (566.983)
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Signilicant Trading Operations

The Council does not have any significant rading operations.

Agency Services
The Council does not provide any agency services.

Related Parly Transactions

A Reloted Parly Transaction is o fransfer of resources or obligalions between relaled porties, regordless of whether a
price is charged. Reloted Porly Transaciions exclude fransaclions with any other entity thot is a reloted party solely
because of its economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A related parly is
one that has the ability to conlrol the olher porly cr exercise significant influence over the other parly in making
financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related parly enlity and another entity are subject
to common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and
Trade Unions in the course of their normaol dealings with the Council. In addition where the relalionship with the
Council and the entity is solely that of an Agency these are not deemed to be Related Party Transaclions.

The Council paid amounis of over £3,000 to the {oliowing bodies in which Councillors or Council Senior
Management had an interest. Councillors were voted on o the Management Commitiees in relafion to some of
the organisations listed. Any payments were made with proper considerotion of declarolion of interests.

31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ i
Arc 21 4,660,793 4,665,527 |
Ballee & Harryville Community Enterprise 21,539 57,012
Ballycarry & District Communily Association - 3,022
Ballymena Bid Lid 13,422 24,623
Baliymena North Parinership 40,825 38,442
Baliymena Retailers Against Crime 10,544 8732
Bom United Foolball Club 7.315 -
Broughshane Communily Associafion - 5,359
Caricklergus Enlerprise ) 41,715 38,300
Camick Rangers Football Club 2,160 -
Causeway Coast & Glens Heritage Trust 22,965 22,000
Cithra Foundation 15,129 -
Citizens Advice Bureau 330,252 220,000
Cullybackey Development Agency PCS 7.709 -
G4s Securily - 7.149
Glenlough Community Association - 5,280 4,828
Glenravel & District Community & Residenis Association 6,725 -
Larne Economic Development Co (Ledcom) - 94,365
Lough Neagh Partnership 3,500 3,500
Mid and East Antrim Agewell Partnership 51,941 31,782
Millbrook Community Association 8.986 7.095
Moyle Primary School - 13,338
Northern lreland Local Government Association 47,209 42,871
Northern Heailth & Social Care Trust - 12,750
North irish Dragoons Society 4,275 -
Royal Scotlish Pipe Band Association - 7,000
Somme Association 3170 5,530
Translink 7.852 -
War Years Remembered - 5,000
Whilehead Community Association 26,956 32,081
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Council Car Scheme

A Council Direclor avails of the Council Car lease scheme and made a conlribulion towards
lease costs during the year.

Jolnt Commitiees
Arc21

The Council is @ member of the Arc21 Joint Commitiee which is established for the purposes of managing waste,
During the year the Council made a confribution of £188k {2015/16 £195k) owards the running costs of Arc21. The
Council also made payments 1o Arc21 of £4.3m (2015/16 £4.47m) for those waste management contracts
specifically procured and managed by Arc 21 on behali of the Council.

The Joint Committee is a partnership of Antrim and Newlownabbey, Mid and East Anirim, Ards and North Down,
Belfast, Lisburn and Castlereagh, Newry, Mourmne and Down Councils established to collaborate in implementing
the Woste Monagement Plan to develop an integraied network of regional waste management facilities which
would be cost effective o the public.

The Joint Commitlee accounts for its funding by the provision of a siatement of accounts which is prepared under
the Local Government {Northerm Irelond) Order 2005 and are subjeci to siatulory audit by the local government
audiior.

Ballymena Business Improvement District

Mid and East Antrim administers the debi collection including a Ballymena Bids Bank Account for Ballymena BIDS

Lid. At the 31 March 2017 the bolance on this Bank account was £20,459. All fransaclions relaling to this company
are not included in the Mid and East Antrim Borough Council financial statements.

Prlor Year Re-statement
There has been no restatements made to the accounts.

Events after the Reporling Period

There were no events occuring afler 31 March 2017 which require adjustment to the Council's financial siatements
or odditional disclosures.

Date of Authorisalion for Issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 25th September 2017.
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